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          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'm going to skip

          3  around a little bit on this morning's agenda and

          4  we're going to go first to the Staten Island

          5  Rezoning applications. Land Use No. 545, 46, 48, 49,

          6  50, 52 and 5A-2, C030298ZMK and related

          7  applications.  We'll be here all day if I hear all

          8  of them.

          9                 Joining me are members of my

         10  Committee:  Council Members Christine Quinn, Melinda

         11  Katz, Mike McMahon, and also joining me this morning

         12  is the Minority Leader of the City Council, Jimmy

         13  Oddo.

         14                 I'd like to call up City Planning to

         15  make the presentation on the Staten Island rezoning

         16  applications.  I think we have several speakers.

         17  Let's do them all at once. I also understand we have

         18  a representative from the Staten Island Borough

         19  President's Office who would also like to present at

         20  the same time, so why don't you go first.  We'll do

         21  one panel.  Please introduce yourself for the

         22  record.

         23                 MR. DMYTRYSZYN:  Good morning.  Thank

         24  you. My name is Nick Dmytryszyn.  I'm the

         25  environmental engineer and land use director for
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          2  Staten Island Borough President James Molinaro.

          3  Just a brief statement I'd like to read.

          4                 Good morning.  With today's hearing

          5  Staten Island is one step closer to realizing a

          6  significant improvement in their quality of life.

          7  As the city planning commissioners realized after

          8  personally touring the Island, poor building methods

          9  and poor planning are ruining the quality of life

         10  for thousands of residents.  For example, new

         11  construction has left countless people without

         12  backyards for children to enjoy.  We have entire

         13  developments with no sidewalks, with front steps

         14  leading directly into the road and with no parking

         15  for cars.  We are the fastest growing county in the

         16  State of New York and it is imperative that growth

         17  management become a mandate and not an option.

         18                 Simply stated, Staten Island neither

         19  has the infrastructure nor the inclination to

         20  support the runaway development which has plagued

         21  our community for the last four decades.

         22                 The single largest investment most

         23  people will make in their lifetime is the purchase

         24  of their home. Too many times I have talked to

         25  homeowners who bought their homes directly from
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          2  blueprints and only after construction is completed

          3  do they realize that their American dream is now a

          4  nightmare.  Faced with missing certificates of

          5  occupancy, shoddy construction and overwhelming

          6  density problems, these residents are denied basic

          7  amenities many of us take for granted.  Similarly,

          8  present- day neighbors are burdened with development

          9  that ruins the character and density of their long-

         10  established neighborhoods.

         11                 By approving the six downzonings,

         12  this committee is making an important step in

         13  protecting the future of Staten Island whose

         14  population, by the way, is expected to grow over the

         15  next ten years by 67,000 people.

         16                 And protection is the key word here.

         17  I am not asking that new and less dense

         18  neighborhoods be created where none now exist.

         19  Instead, and as these applications carefully prove,

         20  these neighborhoods already conform by over 90% to a

         21  less dense zoning category.

         22                 You have in your power the

         23  opportunity to not only maintain the character of

         24  these neighborhoods but also to create decent

         25  housing for future homeowners in the proposed
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          2  downzone areas.  This is what I'm striving to

          3  preserve and create and why an approval of these six

          4  applications will ensure that this becomes reality.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 MR. DURAN:  Hello.  My name is

          7  Leonard Garcia Duran.  I'm the Staten Island

          8  Director of the Planning Office.  I just wanted to

          9  note that the Borough President has the

         10  applications, all six of these applications, and

         11  we're only here to mention that the department is in

         12  strong support of all six of these applications

         13  after having gone through a strong review -- a

         14  strict review, and we support all six of them.

         15                 The City Planning Commission

         16  unanimously approved all six of these applications

         17  only a month ago. Working closely with the Borough

         18  President and his staff we managed to streamline the

         19  public approval process and, in addition, received

         20  the unanimous approval of all three Community Boards

         21  on Staten Island in addition to the unanimous

         22  approval of the Borough Board itself.

         23                 As Nick noted, the compliance rates

         24  on all six of these applications is extremely high,

         25  which we believe represents the new zoning, reflects
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          2  and preserves the current neighborhood character of

          3  Staten Island.  In addition, we have -- the

          4  department actually had one amendment for Hillside's

          5  text piece that we can -- my project manager, James

          6  Miraglia, can give you a brief presentation on that

          7  one piece.

          8                 MR. MIRAGLIA:  James Miraglia,

          9  Department of City Planning, Staten Island Office.

         10                 There's a concurrent zoning text

         11  application to address contextual districts within

         12  the Special Hillsides Preservation District.  The

         13  Hillsides Preservation District guides development

         14  in steep slope areas in Staten Island's serpentine

         15  ridge.  In order to preserve these steep slopes, the

         16  Special Hillsides District applies stricter lot

         17  coverage controls than the underlying zoning.

         18  Unfortunately, the tables in this zoning text were

         19  created in 1987 and there was no such thing as

         20  contextual zoning districts at the time, so

         21  basically this zoning text amendment will correct

         22  those tables to include the contextual districts

         23  that are now being widely mapped throughout the

         24  Special Hillsides District.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Before I open it
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          2  up for questions from committee members and the

          3  guests on the committee today, first of all, I'd

          4  like to compliment the Borough President's Office

          5  and my colleagues from Staten Island, Jimmy Oddo,

          6  Mike McMahon and Andrew Lanza and City Planning for

          7  putting this forward as quickly as possible.

          8                 As Chair of this committee, in the

          9  year and 11 months that I've sat as Chair, we've

         10  approved a number of downzoning applications, but

         11  it's always been my opinion that we need to do more

         12  and we need to do them in a much more speedier

         13  fashion.  Protecting residential neighborhoods

         14  throughout the city is of paramount importance and I

         15  certainly also congratulate the Mayor in moving this

         16  thing ahead.

         17                 I have one quick question and then

         18  I'll open it up to my colleagues.  I was actually

         19  handed a copy, I think it was of the "Staten Island

         20  Advance" this morning. This is a situation which

         21  happens whenever we do a downzoning.  My question

         22  is, is there anything that we can do to stop this

         23  practice where apparently builders are racing to put

         24  in their foundations prior to the approval of these

         25  applications?  Is there anything we can do?  And
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          2  maybe this is outside City Planning.  It may be a

          3  more appropriate question for the Department of

          4  Buildings.  But it would seem to be not totally

          5  self- defeating but almost an abuse of the system if

          6  we allow developers to get in the foundation before

          7  the application is approved, only because there's a

          8  certain administrative time process in this.  I'm

          9  just curious, as to your opinions?  Don't all jump

         10  up at once.

         11                 MR. DMYTRYSZYN:  When the Borough

         12  President submitted the six downzoning applications

         13  last year and the decision that all six applications

         14  would be considered as one submission which required

         15  the Environmental Assessment Statement, there were

         16  of course some feelings as to whether or not the

         17  downzonings would be then prolonged because of the

         18  amount of time, the economic analysis, et cetera.

         19  So, I don't think there was the level of mania that

         20  perhaps was evident over the past couple of months

         21  with the builders. But because of the commitment by

         22  the Mayor, by Chairwoman Burton to be able to get

         23  this through, the fact that the Commissioners were

         24  mandated to go and visit Staten Island and that in

         25  less than 30 days we had three Community Boards, the
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          2  Borough President, the Borough Board, all

          3  unanimously approving, all of a sudden it's kind of

          4  like Wile E. Coyote, kind of like had to be zooming

          5  after the Roadrunner trying to get into those --

          6  kind of get into my foundations.

          7                 My understanding, though, is that,

          8  and somebody else can correct me, is that if the

          9  foundations are in, not just a door, not just a

         10  footing, but if the foundations are in by the time

         11  the City Council, I would presume, passes this, then

         12  there is this grandfathering aspect to it.  Whether

         13  or not there's legal recourses to that, I have not

         14  been able to have somebody come up to me saying

         15  here's the key passage that you could snip them and

         16  cut them off at the pass.  Whether or not there are

         17  some avenues available in the future that could be

         18  done, I would have to pass it on to others.  But we

         19  knew deep down inside that probably starting

         20  September/October the concrete business on Staten

         21  Island was going to have quite an influx of trucks

         22  running all over the place.  Whether or not they

         23  have all their permits to be able to do this, I

         24  would ask perhaps the Chairman to maybe direct it to

         25  the Buildings, but people call us up and if on the
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          2  computer it says they have all of their permits and

          3  if they want to pour foundations in the rain and in

          4  freezing weather and expect it to be a complete

          5  foundation, I don't know any legal recourse that's

          6  available, at least to our office to that. With that

          7  I'll switch it over to somebody else.

          8                 MR. DURAN: As you know, the uniform

          9  land use review process currently dictates a certain

         10  time period that allows the department to go through

         11  an environmental review of any text amendment

         12  including mapping changes.  In addition, it also

         13  allows a specific time period for a public review

         14  after the environmental review and also an approval

         15  by a City Planning Commission and the Council

         16  itself.  I know that there's been some suggestion

         17  that zonings actually be somewhat implemented at the

         18  time the application's actually certified by the

         19  City Planning Commission.  That is a proposal that

         20  the Council and the Department of Buildings would

         21  have to look at specifically because the department

         22  does not necessarily believe that we want to

         23  preclude the City Planning Commission or the Council

         24  itself's decision or the review of these

         25  applications before they're actually made into law.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I think my only

          3  comment would be that if perhaps we can come up with

          4  some sort of procedure by which when the application

          5  is certified that at least those building permits be

          6  put on hold.  It doesn't necessarily mean that any

          7  action further down the line is going to be

          8  approved, but at least put on hold.

          9                 Questions from my colleagues?  I

         10  think, Melinda?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I'm going to

         12  yield. Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Jimmy?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Could I just

         15  make a statement?

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Sure,

         17  absolutely.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: You go first,

         19  and then I'll go right after you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Okay.

         21                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I want to

         22  thank the staff of this Committee and the Land Use

         23  staff for working so hard on this.  I want to

         24  commend the Borough President's Office, Nick, for

         25  all the hard work that you've done and make it clear
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          2  to everyone that this is for Staten Island probably

          3  the most important initiative that's going on right

          4  now.  It's really what we like to call tri-partisan

          5  effort.  It transcends party affiliation and

          6  political perspective.

          7                 The reason it's so important and,

          8  Nick, if you would just help me with this a little

          9  bit, because people think, oh, here goes Staten

         10  Island again trying to downzone its way into some

         11  sort of exclusivity.  I want the record to be very,

         12  very clear that we are not talking about downzoning

         13  vacant land, wide swaths of land that are prime for

         14  development and may very well provide much needed

         15  affordable housing in the City of New York.  Not at

         16  all. These applications deal with neighborhoods that

         17  have existed more than a hundred years.  What

         18  happened was in 1960 or '61 when the city did its

         19  zoning text resolution, it changed the zoning or

         20  marked the zoning for all the City of New York. What

         21  was done to Staten Island was a travesty because

         22  what happened was -- I mean if you would help us --

         23  what happened was large areas of one and two-family

         24  homes or whatever existed, townhouses, were zoned

         25  not with an eye on what existed, is that correct?
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          2                 MR. DMYTRYSZYN:  I think that when we

          3  started going over to civic associations and

          4  community groups, what I was calling the "traveling

          5  Nick shows" earlier this year, the fact is that the

          6  way the application has to be organized, the

          7  analysis that has to be done with a given tract of

          8  land, the block and the lots, granted there are soft

          9  sites that are not developed as probably to the

         10  maximum that they can or there are vacant lands,

         11  just putting that for the moment on the side, the

         12  existing neighborhoods themselves, if you have to

         13  reach this 80 percentile for the kind of existing

         14  housing that is already there, that is already at

         15  less than -- the example I use, imagine you have a

         16  hundred houses and of those hundred houses 80 of

         17  them already are at a less dense than what the

         18  zoning already exists at.

         19                 We get complaints all the time,

         20  besides the teardowns, the fact is why is it

         21  everybody has a Cape Cod and them somebody's all of

         22  a sudden doing townhouses and the zoning allows it.

         23  Meanwhile, the context of the neighborhood is these

         24  Cape Cod establishments.  If the procedure allows

         25  for this analysis to show that these huge areas
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          2  already exist at less dense housing, that's why we

          3  stated we did not create, we're not asking to create

          4  a new neighborhood to say you can only have this.

          5  It is already there and I think that given the

          6  changes that have occurred so rapidly with the price

          7  of land on Staten Island versus perhaps the price of

          8  an existing house, what you can do to change it just

          9  to be able to get your maximum kind of values,

         10  that's what's destroying quality infrastructure,

         11  transportation, the other issues that the Mayor's

         12  looking at with the Overdevelopment Task Force.

         13                 I think that all people want to know

         14  is that they can preserve their biggest investment

         15  so that if their children want to live on Staten

         16  Island or future generations, they won't have to be

         17  Cape Cod mixed in with row houses, townhouses that

         18  just seem -- and no parking. All the other kind of

         19  associated problems.  That's what's there and that's

         20  what we want to keep, that's what preservation in

         21  essence for the quality of life is and I think the

         22  Commissioners of City Planning, when they made these

         23  visits, they were actually -- they could not believe

         24  you come off the front steps of your house into the

         25  street. They said it's just absolutely, totally
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          2  unacceptable.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  That

          4  certainly goes to I think broader issues than what

          5  we're talking about here today, the type of building

          6  and the changes that have to be made within the

          7  zoning texts themselves.  But what we're talking

          8  about here today, I mean if these neighborhoods all

          9  exist, then why is this application necessary?

         10  What's going on?

         11                 MR. DMYTRYSZYN:  You could call it

         12  greed, you could call it trying to -- I mean that's

         13  a big kind of social context question over here.  I

         14  know that the complaints we hear all the time is

         15  city government failed over the past 40 years to

         16  revisit what they had established in the 1960s.  If

         17  they settled there and they said this is the kind of

         18  lifestyle we want, then just because the economics

         19  all of a sudden starts changing and people can take

         20  advantage of the elderly who perhaps want to move in

         21  with their family and move out west and then they

         22  say I'm going to buy out and I'm going to tear down

         23  and I'm going to change the overall scenario, I

         24  think there's so many different social tensions

         25  going on, economic tensions and the cry that I keep
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          2  on hearing is this is not where I want to raise my

          3  family anymore.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  I think, so

          5  my colleagues understand, a perfect example is Carey

          6  Avenue and Bement Avenue (phonetic), you know that

          7  site, where you had an existing home that existed

          8  for more than a hundred years and because the zoning

          9  that was done in 1960 does not relate to what

         10  existed there, someone can come in, buy that home,

         11  tear it down and put in six where one existed.  All

         12  the attendant -- and sell them for $400,000 each.

         13  So everyone who thinks this is about affordable

         14  housing is deluding themselves.  That's just a red

         15  herring that's put out there by those who want to

         16  defend this practice of tearing down neighborhoods,

         17  increasing profit and killing the quality of life

         18  for the people who exist there now.

         19                 So I think the point is again that

         20  when we focus on these downzoning efforts, we're

         21  talking about neighborhoods that have existed for a

         22  long period of time. People have lived there their

         23  whole lives and, all of a sudden, their quality of

         24  life is changing because what the city did in 1960

         25  was wrong.  Is that correct?  What we're really
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          2  doing now is just correcting the mistakes of a

          3  generation ago, is that fair to say?

          4                 MR. DMYTRYSZYN:  I think it's fair

          5  and I think people have come up to me saying, at a

          6  minimum, if you're going to have something like

          7  this, why isn't there a re- review process, why

          8  isn't there a mechanism to say let's look in ten

          9  years, five years, ten years to saying did we make a

         10  mistake, is there a way of changing something, are

         11  there trends that we couldn't see.  It's like trying

         12  to fix up an old Victorian house with these

         13  teardowns.  People are saying it's not worth it.  I

         14  don't have this tax incentive, et cetera.  The value

         15  of the land is a hell of a lot more than the value

         16  of fixing up that house, ergo you tear it down and

         17  on this table you can build 80 dominos instead of

         18  where maybe one was.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  And that's

         20  certainly -- and I know in your district, Mr.

         21  Chairman, I know in Queens especially, I mean,

         22  that's other things that we have to look at like

         23  giving tax incentives to preserve, not to tear down.

         24  And also on the issue of what -- we do have a bill

         25  in now that calls for a moratorium once an
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          2  application is certified by City Planning and we

          3  hope to be working with you to see that that gets

          4  passed.

          5                 I want to thank everyone involved

          6  with this. This is really a milestone day for Staten

          7  Island, from the Borough President to City Planning,

          8  Commissioner Burton and even the Mayor I will

          9  commend.  I won't do that too often, you know.  But

         10  I want to say that this is critical to the future of

         11  Staten Island.  Thank you very much for bringing

         12  this to us and moving it along so quickly.  Thank

         13  you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Tony, you

         15  should be proud of me that I didn't say neither will

         16  I when Mike said I'm not going to commend the Mayor

         17  too often.  I'm learning restraint.

         18                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I think my

         19  colleague Mike McMahon hit it on the head on several

         20  points. Our names are Mike McMahon and Jimmy Oddo.

         21  We're Staten Islanders and we have an

         22  overdevelopment problem.  Or perhaps more correctly,

         23  we have a problem with overdevelopment.  I think

         24  Councilman McMahon framed the issue perfectly.  This

         25  is a crisis that is or has been four decades in the
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          2  making and the actions of government today, tomorrow

          3  and Wednesday are really, as Mike put it, our

          4  attempts to right a wrong.  The rules of the game --

          5  the rules by which the builders play by are

          6  antiquated and insufficient.  What the Borough

          7  President's Office has done with a great deal of

          8  cooperation from City Planning is say let's inject

          9  some sanity into the process.

         10                 I just want all my colleagues to

         11  understand, I think Mike did a good job of framing

         12  this also, that this is a problem that is not unique

         13  to Staten Island.  Our colleague, David Weprin, gave

         14  a speech on the floor of the City Council within the

         15  last two months and if you took away the nameplate

         16  and you took away the fact that he was from Queens

         17  County, his speech would have applied perfectly to

         18  Staten Island.

         19                 I just want to stress one thing that

         20  the Borough President's representatives stated and,

         21  Nick, if you could just elaborate on this, the

         22  compliance rate of each of these downzonings is over

         23  90%.  Correct me if I'm wrong, but does -- that

         24  means that the existing neighborhoods that we are

         25  downzoning are, for the most part, 92 and 93% of
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          2  those housing types are currently detached one and

          3  two- family homes, and that's where we're downzoning

          4  to.

          5                 MR. DMYTRYSZYN:  That is correct, and

          6  in fact because of this required analysis, it's not

          7  something that everybody decides to do in their own

          8  manner.  There is a procedure.  There are written

          9  ways in which you must look at your particular

         10  geographical boundaries that you want to look at and

         11  the fact that the regulations allow that if you

         12  don't go below an 80% compliance so that if you want

         13  to look at a less dense designation, and all of

         14  these applications existing today are already at the

         15  less dense save for the fact that they don't have

         16  that legally down on a map.  We're trying to rectify

         17  that.

         18                 I think that -- just one other kind

         19  of statement that I'd like to make is there are some

         20  voices at times that are speaking in which the

         21  Borough President has eliminated all R- 32 housing

         22  on Staten Island.  We have not done that.  We have

         23  not eliminated R- 32 zoning on the Island.  What we

         24  have done is in those neighborhoods that already,

         25  even though they're in a R- 32 area, are at less
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          2  dense housing.  That is what they should be

          3  classified as. That's the way that it was built and

          4  that's what we want to preserve.  So we did not do

          5  anything in which we invented rules to come up with

          6  this greater than 90%, we followed the regulations.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  One last point

          8  and then I'll turn it over to my colleagues.  This

          9  is -- we're calling this six applications but a

         10  seventh community was added during the process and

         11  that was the Town of Travers. That originally was

         12  not included.  I just want to commend the Borough

         13  President's Office and City Planning for being able

         14  to go back into the Town of Travers and cut out an

         15  area so that there would be a sufficient compliance

         16  rate and offer some protections to a community

         17  that's ripe, ripe for teardowns.

         18                 I want to thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I

         19  want to thank the Land Use Chairman ahead of time,

         20  Chairwoman ahead of time for the cooperation, the

         21  subcommittee today, full land use tomorrow, full

         22  Council on Wednesday and tomorrow on Staten Island

         23  and the Mayor and Mike and Andy and the VP and I get

         24  to announce some of the recommendations for the Task

         25  Force.  Hopefully that will be a template for
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          2  communities like yours, Mr. Chairman, and hopefully

          3  offer some relief to folks in Queens and Bronx and

          4  Brooklyn who are suffering from problems, that need

          5  help beyond downzoning.  So thank you to all of you

          6  folks.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  We've also been

          8  joined by Committee Member Council Member Gioia and

          9  Maria Baez.

         10                 Council Member Katz.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Hello,

         12  gentlemen.  We appreciate you being here.  I just --

         13  Council Member Oddo really asked my question, but I

         14  want to just put this sort of in perspective for the

         15  record because there's been so many conversations

         16  about Staten Island being overdeveloped and you're

         17  taking away our chances to build on vacant land. I

         18  think Council Member McMahon when he said he wanted

         19  to make it clear this was not vacant property, these

         20  were already residential neighborhoods.  I want to

         21  just for the record and technically get two things

         22  on the record.

         23

         24                 Number one, the rate of conformity I

         25  think is what we're talking about.  It has to be
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          2  over 80%.  In this particular case, is there one of

          3  these rezonings out of all six of them that is under

          4  90%?

          5                 MR. DMYTRYSZYN:  I don't have numbers

          6  in front of me.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  The answer's

          8  no, right?

          9                 They're all over 90, if I'm not

         10  mistaken, but I'd like you to put that on the

         11  record.

         12                 MR. MIRAGLIA:  I'd like to address

         13  that. Collectively all six applications are over

         14  90%.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Okay.

         16                 MR. MIRAGLIA:  There are some that

         17  are in the very high 80s.  I'd like to correct one

         18  other thing.  There is no codified -- nothing is

         19  written that says it has to be over 80%.  It's quite

         20  discretionary, actually.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  We understand

         22  that. We've actually done rezonings that were, you

         23  know, under 80%, way under 80%.  So the fact that

         24  this is in the upper 80s or low 90s I think is very

         25  important, because if you read a lot of the press
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          2  reports it is constantly discussing the idea, not

          3  the fact, that Staten Island tends to be

          4  overdeveloped everywhere.  And in this particular

          5  case, I do want to make it clear for the record that

          6  we are passing rezoning today to continue and

          7  preserve the characteristics of the neighborhoods

          8  that we have the applications for.

          9                 MR. MIRAGLIA: That is correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  And the other

         11  issue is what Council Member McMahon was getting at

         12  before, what's happening in a lot of the

         13  neighborhoods, and I assume it's happening in this

         14  neighborhood also, the zoning is high enough for

         15  folks to buy two or three lots of land, tear down

         16  the single-family homes and then build at a much

         17  higher density, and that is in existence now in the

         18  zoning, and that is one of the problems that we are

         19  attacking today; is that correct?

         20                 MIRAGLIA: That is correct.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  So by doing

         22  this rezoning, we're basically -- and those

         23  buildings that are being built are obviously so out

         24  of characteristic of the rest of the neighborhood

         25  that they do become a blight.  I know that's more of
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          2  an opinion, but I'm asking your opinion on the

          3  neighborhood because the rest of the area is mostly

          4  one-family homes.

          5                 MR. DMYTRYSZYN: That is correct.  And

          6  the Borough President, he has certain key areas in

          7  which he, not only invited the Commissioners to

          8  attend, but when you see what I call the dominos,

          9  all of a sudden appearing on the horizon as you turn

         10  a corner, and the fact of the associated number of

         11  families and the lack of parking and other amenities

         12  with that, you could use whatever adjectives you

         13  want, blight, there are other choice words that are

         14  used for what it could degrade into, and I'll choose

         15  that since I'm not the Borough President, but I

         16  think the lack of consistency, the lack of

         17  character, we all complain about that we want to

         18  have, not a uniformity, but we want to keep

         19  something that is in terms of what is to be

         20  preserved for quality of life. And the dominos, in

         21  my opinion, do create this blightness on the

         22  horizon.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  I appreciate

         24  that. Thank you, Mr. Chair.  I really just wanted to

         25  get clear for myself, as well as for the record,
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          2  that the reason that we are here is really not

          3  because of vacant lots that are out there waiting to

          4  be built for affordable housing, we are here because

          5  of the blights that folks are using in order to use

          6  their entire density allowed under the present

          7  zoning, and this hopefully will help to alleviate

          8  that problem.

          9                 Thank you, gentlemen.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         11  Quinn.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.  I

         13  just wanted to go back to actually the first point

         14  that the Chair made about people rushing to build.

         15  It's not so much a question but I more just wanted

         16  to, for everyone, share the experience that we had

         17  in Chelsea, because after we passed the Chelsea 197A

         18  Plan, which downzoned part of the neighborhood,

         19  although we thought we were being fair and actually

         20  then created more building opportunities in other

         21  parts of the neighborhood, but sometimes it's never

         22  enough and people did rush to build on the parts we

         23  had downzoned. What actually we found was that the

         24  Department of Buildings and the local precinct were

         25  the critical thing and we really needed to get the
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          2  best squad at the Department of Buildings on alert

          3  for the sites in question and then get the precinct

          4  on alert so they knew that if they got a call that

          5  there was illegal building going on, either without

          6  a permit or before the hours, that they knew to take

          7  it seriously.

          8                 We also found it enormously helpful

          9  to have City Planning reach out to the Department of

         10  Buildings in addition to the Council and the

         11  Community Board because then they knew it was a

         12  concern of all parts of government.  It was a very

         13  laborious process.  I mean, we had people who live

         14  nearby who would take pictures of how far the, you

         15  know, how much had been poured in, and then the

         16  builders covered up the lot so you couldn't see it

         17  and then we had to have the Department of Buildings

         18  take them down.  So it's a tremendous amount of work

         19  but it is really I think DOB but you need City

         20  Planning to send a message to them that they have to

         21  respond.

         22                 What I wanted to kind of suggest and

         23  ask all involved in this process to think about is

         24  whether there is a way when we do these type of

         25  downzonings that immediately some type of trigger
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          2  occurs that puts the Department of Buildings on

          3  alert because I struggle with getting the attention

          4  I think my district deserves from the Department of

          5  Buildings, it's not usually a fulfilling process, my

          6  interactions with the Department of Buildings, and

          7  I'm sure I'm not the only person that has that

          8  problem. So if there's some way we could create when

          9  we downzone an automatic system by which DOB is put

         10  on alert to give extra attention to those areas to

         11  prevent this from happening, I think that would be

         12  useful.  And if there's a way City Planning could

         13  work with the Council to try to figure out how to

         14  legislatively make such a trigger, I think it would

         15  be useful and we would know how to put such vast

         16  amounts of energy like I described that we had to do

         17  in Chelsea that we'll probably have to now do in

         18  Staten Island.

         19                 So, I look forward to working with

         20  you and the Committee staff on something like that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  I just

         22  wanted to add two things.  I know we want to move

         23  this along, but in response to what Council Member

         24  Quinn said, and also the fact that she spoke to this

         25  issue coming from Manhattan, and those two points:
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          2  The first is, we sit here and talk about this being

          3  sort of a Staten Island and then a Queens issue, an

          4  outerborough issue, but it's really not.  The idea

          5  of preservation I think is something that's plagued

          6  the City of New York for centuries and we truly are

          7  a city that doesn't put enough value on

          8  preservation.  There's no city in the world that

          9  looks like New York City.  Compare other foreign

         10  capitals around the world and there's much more

         11  preservation of older buildings and there's much

         12  more of a focus on that, and I think that that's

         13  simply a matter that the zoning never correlates to

         14  what exists.  So this is a problem, and whether it's

         15  in Chelsea, in Manhattan or parts of Staten Island,

         16  it doesn't matter.  This is an issue that plagues us

         17  all and it's something we all have to work on.  This

         18  is not just an outerborough thing.

         19                 The second thing you talked about and

         20  we've battle on this with Staten Island, is whether

         21  or not we could have a moratorium in place when

         22  there are major initiatives like this going on

         23  because not only do we have the downzoning in Staten

         24  Island, but we also have a task force set up that's

         25  looking at other issues.  We maintain, we continue
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          2  to maintain, especially given the Supreme Court

          3  rulings, that a moratorium would be possible as a

          4  planning tool.  Unfortunately, City Planning said

          5  that in order to do a moratorium, you have to do a

          6  whole zoning resolution.  You can't do it

          7  legislatively, you have to do it by zoning

          8  resolution.

          9                 So I urge this Committee to continue

         10  to look at that, because if you think about it,

         11  normally a downzoning like this takes at least a

         12  year or two years and the Task Force recommendations

         13  are going to take a year and we're sort of fiddling

         14  while Rome burns.

         15                 It's quite clear.  If you look at the

         16  articles in the Staten Island Advance they talked

         17  about the race to beat the clock.  So we have to

         18  look at that more aggressively I think from the

         19  Council point of view and I think that's something

         20  that I know we'll all work on together.

         21                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I'm sorry, I

         23  just want to, because this is, although I'm from

         24  Manhattann, a huge issue in my district on the west

         25  side of Manhattan, and I would love to, thank you
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          2  for adding what you just added, I'd love to look at

          3  that moratorium issue with you guys, and the more --

          4  we could create a multi-borough coalition because

          5  the thing I fear is that, you know, we pass things

          6  on paper and applaud ourselves and then they don't

          7  actually , because they take so long, given how long

          8  some things just take, that they end up not having

          9  as much effect as we would want to.  If it means

         10  pushing the envelope and maybe making City Planning

         11  uncomfortable, that's maybe what we'll just have to

         12  do.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you.  I'm

         14  going to call up two panels that have signed up to

         15  speak on this. The first panel will be in

         16  opposition, and then the last panel will be in

         17  favor.

         18                 Jessica, is it Fontino?  I can't --

         19  Fortino and Mike Fazio.  I'll ask each of you to

         20  introduce yourselves.  Given the number of items

         21  that are on the calendar today and the number of

         22  speakers, I'm going to have to limit each speaker to

         23  no more than three minutes.  I hope that you can

         24  live within that time frame.

         25                 MR. FAZIO:  My name is Michael Fazio.
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          2  I'm a home builder on Staten Island and I'm the

          3  immediate Past President of the New York State

          4  Builders Association.

          5                 MS. FORTINO:  My name is Jessica

          6  Fortino. I'm the Executive Vice President of the

          7  Building Industry Association of New York City.

          8                 MR. FAZIO:  Good morning.  First I

          9  just wanted to make the comment, I can sympathize

         10  with your frustration of getting things done in the

         11  city.  It takes quite a lengthy amount of time.  I'm

         12  used to it so I can appreciate your frustration with

         13  that.

         14                 I wanted to give my perspective

         15  relative to the six applications for zoning map

         16  changes on Staten Island.  My testimony focuses on

         17  the impact of zoning changes and on the availability

         18  of housing, especially affordable housing.

         19                 Staten Island home builders agree

         20  with attempts to preserve and enhance neighborhoods,

         21  however approaches such as blanket downzonings

         22  threaten to impose real challenges on the home

         23  building industry, the product we primarily deliver

         24  and the consumer we can serve.

         25                 Home buyers on Staten Island in the
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          2  1960s and 1970s were predominantly working class

          3  people and the home of choice was a 40 by 100 lot

          4  with a detached home on it. Over the years into the

          5  1980s and currently the type of buyer has remained

          6  the same, however the same home of choice is a semi-

          7  attached or townhouse.  Only limited by choice, I

          8  should say, by price.  You know, everybody would

          9  love to have a detached home but they're limited by

         10  price.

         11                 As a home builder on Staten Island I

         12  take pride in my profession.  I construct houses for

         13  families on Staten Island.  I construct homes that

         14  allow families to stay on the island they grew up on

         15  and homes that provide sufficient space for family

         16  living and homes that do not, hopefully, price

         17  people out of the home buying market.

         18                 When I see downzonings, I see reduced

         19  opportunities for affordable housing.  The changes

         20  proposed today clearly reduce opportunities to

         21  provide additional units to serve existing families

         22  as well as tomorrow's families.  One projection

         23  indicated a reduction of 9,000 homes as a result of

         24  these downzonings.  I certainly care about the

         25  Island and issues associated with development,
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          2  however I also care about whether young families can

          3  find a home when their time has come as well as

          4  seniors like my own grandparents having appropriate

          5  housing opportunities on Staten Island.  The

          6  downzonings to date just don't address these issues

          7  and these are issues that are not going to go away.

          8                 Characteristically, the Department of

          9  City Planning in the past has remained extremely

         10  busy with Manhattan issues as we all know.  When

         11  zoning issues were addressed in other boroughs, such

         12  as the proliferation of illegal conversions in

         13  Queens, changes were proposed citywide.  That's how

         14  contextual zoning was introduced, which has since

         15  limited the ability to provide garages and other

         16  amenities in new homes on Staten Island.  Perhaps an

         17  effort to strictly enforce existing building codes

         18  may have addressed the issue in Queens or it still

         19  remains a major concern despite contextual zoning.

         20                 Staten Island reels under the impact

         21  of so called solutions that instead cause problems

         22  such as parking and ugly- looking boxy homes to name

         23  a few.  With planners making --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Can you sum up?

         25                 MR. FAZIO:  Okay, I will sum up.
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          2  Hopefully the Mayor's Growth Management Task Force

          3  will introduce zoning reforms that reflect real need

          4  for Staten Island families for homes they can live

          5  in.  We urge the Council to approve -- to support

          6  this approach.  I could ask for more time if I

          7  could.  I just need another minute, please.  I would

          8  like to ask for that.  Thank you very much.

          9                 The Council must also recognize the

         10  importance of home building on Staten Island and our

         11  efforts to provide needed affordable housing for

         12  fellow Islanders and New Yorkers who become Staten

         13  Islanders.  We do this in an environment where

         14  zoning, building codes and bureaucracy impose some

         15  of the most restrictive and difficult requirements

         16  which add thousands -- I'm going to repeat that,

         17  thousands of dollars to housing costs.  Without

         18  careful review and thoughts, some downzonings,

         19  including already some that have been passed by the

         20  city, threaten to make housing less affordable.

         21                 Nearly three of every five homes on

         22  Staten Island are one family and with the new

         23  construction at lowest levels ever, we need to

         24  assure adequate and attractive housing to meet these

         25  needs of these families.

                                                            38

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 Many of these areas being downzoned

          3  are some of Staten Island's poorest communities.

          4  Mariners Harbor is an area where poorly- managed

          5  public housing has nearly destroyed a once beautiful

          6  section.  Neighborhoods such as this, Port Richmond

          7  and New Brighton are ones that desperately need the

          8  stimulus that new construction and new working

          9  families bring.  By requiring a zoning that will

         10  only permit detached housing in these areas, I want

         11  to say in these areas, prices will rise to exceed

         12  $400,000 to cover increased land costs. This will

         13  push many working families out of the market and

         14  discourage builders from assuming the risk.

         15                 I just want to tell you quickly one

         16  of my proudest moments as a home builder is when a

         17  single Latino mom from the South Bronx, who was

         18  working at the Archdiocese of New York at the time,

         19  purchased a two bedroom townhome from me in the

         20  Travis section of Staten Island.  Today about eight

         21  years later, she's still there and, needless to say,

         22  very happy.

         23                 My fear is that the continued bad

         24  policy of across- the- board downzonings -- I

         25  repeat, across- the- board, because I agree with in
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          2  the areas where it's needed, will prevent others

          3  like her from having a better place for their

          4  families.

          5                 With New York desperately struggling

          6  to retain its working middle class and needing to

          7  recover over 100,000 units of new housing, we need

          8  to do more than offer patchwork solutions that make

          9  a good headline.  We need solutions that make sense

         10  and don't exacerbate other problems and needs

         11  including how we meet the need for affordable

         12  housing for all New Yorkers.  Don't prevent Staten

         13  Island from being a place where every New Yorker can

         14  own a piece of the American dream.

         15                 I thank you for your time today.

         16  Thank you.

         17                 MS. FORTINO:  Thank you.  Staten

         18  Island resident home builders generally support

         19  downzoning as a tool to address character and

         20  density concerns.  At the same time, we find zoning

         21  remains an important tool to provide housing

         22  opportunities for the middle and working class

         23  residents of our city.

         24                 With these six or actually seven

         25  applications, Staten Island will have experienced
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          2  over 50 changes to its zoning maps and these

          3  applications consistently downzone districts.  In

          4  each case the downzoning also served to limit

          5  opportunities to provide housing for Staten Island

          6  families who might want a home of their own.  These

          7  new proposals cover almost 40,000 properties and

          8  2,400 blocks of Staten Island, the largest single

          9  rezoning in the city since the adoption of the 1961

         10  zoning resolution.

         11                 A balanced approach makes more sense

         12  and the changes to date may upset the delicate

         13  balance that provides the type of homes a typical

         14  Staten Island family can afford. The Council should

         15  consider an analysis of how these downzonings limit

         16  the amount of housing and its effect on

         17  affordability.  This is particularly true when these

         18  proposals result in potentially 9,100 less units

         19  being built.  It makes sense to examine

         20  affordability, especially for our seniors, young

         21  people and low to moderate income people in less

         22  well- to- do neighborhoods.  Some have suggested

         23  that you become bystanders on this round of

         24  downzonings and later propose appropriate places for

         25  zoning at higher density.  We see that approach as
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          2  problematic. While it is theoretically possible to

          3  revisit the issues again, we hope to draw your

          4  attention to these problems now so you have the

          5  option of correcting them now if you choose or

          6  revisiting them at a future date.

          7                 We identify for you several

          8  neighborhoods to re- examine for technical

          9  adjustment to ensure affordable housing

         10  opportunities for less affluent and working class

         11  families.  Specifically New Brighton, St. George,

         12  Port Richmond and Mariners Harbor.  These North

         13  Shore communities represented by Councilman Michael

         14  McMahon will each suffer because of the proposed

         15  action before you.  Downzoning in these communities

         16  which house some of the less affluent residents of

         17  Staten Island will deny them the opportunity for

         18  much needed new construction and quality affordable

         19  homes for working class people.  Increasing the

         20  zoning lot required and eliminating townhouse

         21  construction will seriously inhibit the ability of

         22  New York's residents to avail themselves of

         23  affordable housing programs such as the New York

         24  City Partnership Housing designed to create housing

         25  for those in need and strengthening neighborhoods by

                                                            42

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  introducing home owning residents into the

          3  community.

          4                 Context also merits a review.  Many

          5  neighborhoods throughout the city, not just those

          6  zoned for R- 3 or higher, have concerns with new

          7  building in their neighborhoods.  The key point here

          8  is that downzoning imposes limits on units.  It does

          9  not necessarily limit new building that keeps the

         10  scale that already exists in the community.  The

         11  phenomena of teardowns occur in neighborhoods

         12  without regard for the zoning that pre- exists.

         13  Homes in R- 1 and R- 2 zones remain just as likely

         14  candidates for replacement as homes in higher

         15  density zones.

         16                 The industry in Staten Island

         17  believes the much anticipated recommendations of the

         18  Mayor's Staten Island Growth Management Task Force,

         19  which is due to be released tomorrow, reflects this

         20  understanding.  Its proposals will address zoning

         21  text and building code reforms to address

         22  neighborhood character, infrastructure and related

         23  concerns.

         24                 These six downzonings before you

         25  reflect the old school thinking that downzoning is
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          2  the cure- all.  During the past several months, the

          3  industry proposed a "Truth Series" that addressed

          4  misnomers and other issues that some ascribe to the

          5  building industry on Staten Island.

          6                 Number 14 of the ones we've released

          7  thus far, which is called "Focusing on What Staten

          8  Island Needs," discuss an overreliance on downzoning

          9  as a panacea for development concerns -- excuse me

         10   -- when Staten Island and New York City government

         11  did not address infrastructure, traffic, character

         12  and design, as well as providing housing for

         13  seniors.

         14                 While downzoning may make sense in

         15  some communities where development occurred at a

         16  level much less densely than the zoning permits,

         17  blanket downzoning across the Island offers no

         18  panacea.  The issues over raised which are

         19  overcrowded schools, traffic, parking, teardowns,

         20  character, the environment and open space, which

         21  were all addressed in the "Truth Series" occur

         22  because of the actions or inactions of government.

         23  Calls for downzoning similar to the clamor for

         24  building moratorium reflect inadequate studies of

         25  the needs of Staten Island.
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          2                 The best way to manage development

          3  across the Island is to utilize sound land use and

          4  planning principles. This includes mixing open

          5  space, low density housing and higher density around

          6  mass transportation hubs in what might be called our

          7  downtown areas.  Government and its planners

          8  neglected to follow this approach for Staten Island.

          9    The result is a low density housing sprawl across

         10  the Island but sometimes at a level that leads to

         11  concerns about development.

         12                 A focus on rezonings including those

         13  proposed and enacted to date wrongly diverts the

         14  discussion of Staten Island's real concerns which

         15  include traffic, the need to improve mass

         16  transportation, protecting our open spaces, the need

         17  to reform zoning and building rules to address

         18  character and design, the need to improve the

         19  allocation of available school seats and ensuring

         20  new seats to meet the natural growth in student

         21  enrollment, the need to provide affordable housing

         22  and meet the needs of a growing population of

         23  seniors with market rate and subsidized senior

         24  housing.

         25                 Instead, we face six more downzonings
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          2  that cover about 40% of the residential zones on the

          3  Island. This approach avoids a discussion on Staten

          4  Island needs. When downzoning does occur, it does

          5  not obviate the need to refocus on infrastructure

          6  needs and design elements to enhance new development

          7  and induce new development to best meet the needs of

          8  our families.

          9                 Toward this end, you need to

         10  carefully limit downzoning in order to ensure

         11  adequate affordable housing opportunities for our

         12  seniors, younger folks and those with less means.

         13                 We urge your careful review of these

         14  applications.  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Questions from

         16  Committee members?

         17                 Council Member Oddo.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Let me just say

         19  that none of us believes that downzoning is a

         20  panacea or a cure all.  In fact, I think the last

         21  five or six months, Mike would agree with me, I

         22  believe, have demonstrated to us that the solution

         23  to the various problems require us to go well beyond

         24  downzonings and that's why the task force in its

         25  recommendations are so important.  Downzonings are a
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          2  good start.

          3                 Mike, I have a question for you.  Is

          4  a $440,000 townhouse off Sand Lane affordable

          5  housing?

          6                 MR. FAZIO:  Let me answer your

          7  question.  The areas I spoke about -- you're talking

          8  about one- family town homes from 240,000 to

          9  280,000.  We're talking about one family semi-

         10  detached homes from 300 to 350,000.  I ask the

         11  question, not only to you, to everybody, and it's a

         12  question and answer in the same.  Where in New York

         13  City can you find a new one- family town home or

         14  semi- attached home not subsidized for these prices.

         15    I don't believe they exist.  I don't believe they

         16  exist.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  I think that to

         18  couch this issue in terms of affordable housing and

         19  to couch this issue in terms of single Latino moms

         20  from the Bronx is really --

         21                 MR. FAZIO:  It's a true story.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:   -- Is really

         23  an amazing.  It's an amazing reach that borders on

         24   -- it borders on disgraceful.  This is not about

         25  the single Latino mom from the Bronx.  Okay?  And
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          2  that may be a true story. That may be the exception

          3  to the rule.  To sell town homes on Sand Lane at

          4  $440,000 or $400,000 and to say that this is about

          5  providing affordable housing is not accurate.  And

          6  you know what?  It's not only my opinion, it's what

          7  Staten Islanders believe.  We're doing what we

          8  believe is in the best interest of Staten Island.  I

          9  think that the majority of Staten Islanders agree

         10  with it and I have to say that, you know, the real

         11  concerns about Staten Island; traffic, protecting

         12  open space, improving mass transportation, you know,

         13  I wonder if the net impact of the Building Industry

         14  Association has been negative or positive on those

         15  specifics.

         16                 We know downzonings are part, just

         17  part of the solution.  We're working on the other

         18  parts of that solution.

         19                 MR. FAZIO:  I just want to respond to

         20  that. Mike, I didn't answer your question directly

         21  about the South Beach/Sand Lane area of Staten

         22  Island.  That's an area where maybe ten years ago we

         23  had basically bungalows there and you found very

         24  little new construction.  What has happened, the

         25  builders there found a niche in Russian immigrant

                                                            48

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  buyers who came from the Brighton Beach section of

          3  Brooklyn.  For some reason they liked to be near the

          4  water and the prices in Brighton Beach have priced

          5  them out of Brighton Beach.  And by them coming into

          6  this area of Sand Lane in South Beach

          7  they have themselves elevated the prices by creating

          8  demand in this area.  So I just wanted to offer an

          9  answer to that question.  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Council Member

         11  McMahon.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chairman, Miss Fortino.  And Mike, I'm pleased

         14  that you focus your attention on helping the people

         15  in my district, but I'm a little confused because I

         16  haven't seen any effort to build real affordable

         17  housing in my district since I've been elected.  In

         18  fact, I can only think of one project that exists

         19  that was built on the Peels Brewery a generation ago

         20  almost, a long time ago.  So if there's this great

         21  desire from the building industry to build

         22  affordable housing and to build senior housing and

         23  to provide the type of housing that is so needed

         24  across this city, why has there been no effort at

         25  this up until now and why has this become the
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          2  rallying picture?  I join in Jimmy's almost outrage

          3  that you have a case to make and to do it by sort of

          4  advocating for those who need affordable housing,

          5  sort of the poorer people in our society, I'm

          6  alarmed at that.  Let me say that. Outrage is maybe

          7  too strong, but I am alarmed at that. Where have

          8  these efforts been up until now?

          9                 MR. FAZIO:  That's a good question.

         10  It's my understanding that the bulk of partnership

         11  housing is built on city owned property that is then

         12  conveyed to the developer and there are subsidies

         13  that are involved.  I'm sure the association and the

         14  builders on Staten Island will be happy to work with

         15  you to find sites like this where we can have more

         16  partnership housing on Staten Island.  There's a

         17  need for it.  But in our testimony when we talk

         18  about affordable housing, we're talking about

         19  housing for middle class people.  We're not

         20  necessarily talking about housing for lower income

         21  people.  Maybe it's a new affordable housing, a new

         22  affordable housing that is unsubsidized but that's

         23  what we've been building for a long time, so there's

         24  no subsidy involved.  It's basically private dollars

         25  and not -- the end user is a working class person.
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          2                 But I'd be --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  So you're

          4  talking --

          5                 MR. FAZIO:  But I'd be happy to work

          6  with you on --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  So you're

          8  talking about the stuff -- let's take Mariners

          9  Harbor for a moment, or a place like Betty Court

         10  where a builder built quote, unquote affordable town

         11  homes where now the people have no street lights,

         12  where the people have no homeowners' association,

         13  where the people have been abandoned by the builder

         14  who put up quote, unquote affordable housing and

         15  they don't have the same rights that the rest of the

         16  people in the neighborhood have and they have

         17  housing that's subpar and this is built under the

         18  rubric of affordable housing?

         19                 Let me ask you this:   You do agree

         20  with the assessment that these applications are in

         21  the range of 90% of conformity of what exists there.

         22    You don't dispute that, do you?

         23                 MR. FAZIO:  I do not.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  Where is the

         25  effort on the building industry to take the old
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          2  buildings that already exist, rehabilitate them and

          3  turn them into housing. In fact, that would be the

          4  cheapest way to build the affordable housing that

          5  you clamor for today.  Where is the effort to do

          6  that if the main goal here is to build affordable

          7  housing?  That's the cheapest and quickest way to do

          8  it but there is no effort by any members of your

          9  association to undertake rehabilitation and

         10  rejuvenation of existing buildings and that existed

         11  for over a hundred years and turn them into the good

         12  quality homes that we seem to be in agreement that

         13  we need.

         14                 MR. FAZIO:  Okay.  I paraphrased

         15  through my testimony, but I did have as part of my

         16  testimony that said that we reeled under the so-

         17  called solutions, the contextual zoning, that caused

         18  problems such as parking and ugly looking boxy

         19  homes, to name a few.  But the issue of downzoning

         20  really doesn't relate to the specific issue of

         21  downzoning.  It doesn't relate to the relative

         22  distance from the curb or property line to the

         23  street or sidewalks. That's being addressed now in

         24  the Task Force which --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  Correct.
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          2                 MR. FAZIO:  -- We're happy about

          3  that.  I mean we've -- for the last six or seven

          4  years the association had a zoning proposal that

          5  brought up these items and we said these houses are

          6  ugly because we're forced to push them into the

          7  ground.  We can't have nice gables, we can't have

          8  windows in the cellars.  We need to have backyards,

          9  so on and so forth.

         10                 The issue of revitalization of

         11  houses, we really -- our association does not have

         12  many members who are contractors or home improvement

         13  people who would be more involved in that, but

         14  that's something that could be looked into.  On the

         15  other hand, that is going to be a very minor help in

         16  the housing needs of this city.  We're willing to

         17  work with you on these issues as I've said.  Thank

         18  you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  But do you

         20  think it's appropriate to take neighborhoods that

         21  have existed for so many years and because of flaws

         22  in the zoning resolutions that were passed in 1960

         23  that that condition should allow for existing

         24  neighborhoods to be torn down for profit?

         25                 MR. FAZIO:  I'll try to answer that
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          2  question. You take a neighborhood like Mariners

          3  Harbor which we have discussed in the past.  They've

          4  had houses, detached homes, older homes that were in

          5  need of heavy repair, that ten years ago nobody

          6  would even buy these houses.  They didn't have a

          7  value.  But the interesting thing about it is that

          8  new construction coming into the neighborhood now

          9  gave these homes a value for whatever -- you know,

         10  that's not my debate here.  It gave these homes more

         11  value.  And unfortunately, the value ended up in a

         12  teardown, but the people who had these homes

         13  couldn't sell them to people who'd want to live in

         14  that area ten years ago.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  But why does

         16  a developer have to buy that old home or what you

         17  guys like to call a white elephant and take it where

         18  one house stood and put up 14 houses instead?  Why

         19  not -- look, you know, because in the olden days I

         20  think builders could have done that as well but they

         21  didn't.  There was a certain ethics or rally to say,

         22  you know what, we're building homes.  I've got a

         23  piece of land here.  I've got an old house on it.

         24  You know what?  Instead of putting up 14 I could put

         25  up seven and I could still make a profit.  Maybe not
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          2  as much profit, but I could build and give a much

          3  better product.

          4                 If that's the case and if you want to

          5  provide the American dream and affordable housing,

          6  why is that not done?  Because what you talk about

          7  in Mariners Harbor, what has been built there in the

          8  last decade is appalling and is outrageous and is

          9  one of the reasons we're here today.  I didn't build

         10  them.  The people didn't build them.  Builders built

         11  them.  They are not pretty.  They're not attractive.

         12  They're not well built and they are the reason that

         13  we are here.  Why was that done?  For affordable

         14  housing or for profit?

         15                 MR. FAZIO:  I agree with you on that

         16  point, but downzoning doesn't address the issue of

         17  aesthetics.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  It addresses

         19  the issue of density.  Six houses on a piece of land

         20  are going to be much prettier than 14 houses with no

         21  backyards and no parking and no street lights.

         22                 MR. FAZIO:  Unfortunately, it's

         23  supply and demand.  I mean I'll use myself as an

         24  example.  Where I would bid on properties in good

         25  conscience to build less units and make, you know,
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          2  try to get more parking in, but the zoning laws

          3  didn't address those parking issues and aesthetic

          4  issues.  What happened is you get another builder or

          5  someone bidding on it who looks at it purely from a

          6  sense of density.  What happens is you're left out

          7  in the draw. You're left out of the drawing.  You

          8  miss out on lot after lot.  But we were in agreement

          9  with addressing issues of parking and aesthetics and

         10  nicer housing and rear yards and front yards and

         11  sidewalks.  I don't think we disagree on that at

         12  all.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  I agree.

         14  But you just said it, density drives the profit

         15  margin and if we reduce density, then what?  I mean

         16  what we're doing here is reducing density.  We have

         17  no delusions here that we're making somebody build a

         18  prettier home, that we're enforcing things that the

         19  Task Force is doing.  This is about density and the

         20  problem is that you guys push the envelope on

         21  density.  And not you personally, you know this is

         22  not personal, you know that, Mike.

         23                 MR. FAZIO:  I understand.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  But here are

         25  those who push the issue on density and that's why
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          2  we're now playing catch up 40 years later on

          3  something that should have been done along time ago.

          4    But the industry did not self- regulate itself,

          5  the industry did not quote, unquote push affordable

          6  housing.  The industry's not doing the things that

          7  you're saying could be done and so that's why we

          8  have to do what we do today.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Any other

         10  comments or questions from Committee members?

         11                 Before I ask the next panel to come

         12  up, I also want to back up the comments of Council

         13  Member Oddo and McMahon.

         14                 I am very disturbed that the industry

         15  seems to be using the issue of affordable housing as

         16  a way to stop downzoning or contextual rezonings.

         17  My community -- I have represented northeast Queens

         18  and the single most important issue in my Council

         19  district is overdevelopment.  I think to use that

         20  argument that somehow doing this hurts affordable

         21  housing is absolute nonsense.  And I have to tell

         22  you, I think the industry does a great disservice to

         23  itself if it keeps using that argument.  That is not

         24  the appropriate argument.  It doesn't hold water.

         25  Let us work together to address those issues that we
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          2  both agree on, but downzoning, contextual zonings,

          3  to protect the residential character of the

          4  neighborhoods through low density neighborhoods

          5  throughout the city is extremely important.  People

          6  are leaving this city because the quality of life is

          7  going out the window and overdevelopment is one

          8  major reason.

          9                 Introduce yourself.

         10                 MR. CAPPELI:  I'm Allen Cappeli.  I'm

         11  a representative of the Building Industry

         12  Association.

         13                 I'd just like to reiterate that we

         14  are in agreement on essentially 90 or 95% of what is

         15  taking place and we applaud the Mayor and the

         16  Council members from Staten Island for their work,

         17  particularly with the Task Force that's going to

         18  issue a report tomorrow that deals with most of the

         19  issues that the Borough President's representative

         20  mentioned earlier in his testimony and much of the

         21  things that both Council Member Oddo and Council

         22  Member McMahon have stated in their question and

         23  answer period.  We share with you your concern for

         24  dealing with the problem that exists.

         25                 But make no mistake about it, while
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          2  we agree in 90% of the instances, the fact of the

          3  matter is this city has a housing crisis, as I'm

          4  sure many of you are aware.  In the newspaper this

          5  morning the estimate was that 700,000 people have

          6  moved into the city in the last decade and only

          7  200,000 units of housing have occurred.  Similarly,

          8  the City Planning or the Borough President's

          9  representative testified earlier today that you need

         10  to -- that it's 60,000 people are expected to move

         11  to Staten Island over the next ten years.  So it is

         12  incumbent upon us to work together to not only

         13  downzone the areas that are appropriate to do those

         14  things, but to work towards creating the -- and

         15  whether it be through this process today or through

         16  some other process in the future, the kind of

         17  housing that will keep and attract the working and

         18  middle class people in this city as you have so

         19  correctly pointed out.

         20                 We stand committed to work with you

         21  on those efforts.  We're not going to agree about

         22  everything and we're going to have a different

         23  perspective on some things, but I think that the

         24  Task Force process has shown that people from

         25  different perspectives can work together and come up

                                                            59

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  with some things that are good for everybody.  Thank

          3  you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Council Member

          5  Oddo.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Thank you.  I

          7  appreciate that and I would ask in line with that

          8  good faith that you take a message on a very

          9  specific point beyond the downzonings back to the

         10  folks in the building industry, and that's the issue

         11  that Councilman McMahon and Lanza and I have been

         12  working on in terms of the registry.  We want a

         13  registry of builders and we want it with the ability

         14  to revoke.  So if the offer is in good faith, that's

         15  one issue that we need to do a lot of work on and we

         16  need to do it together and we need to do it quickly.

         17    As Ronald Reagan used to say, there should be

         18  trust but with verification. So that's a perfect

         19  issue where if we really do want to work with each

         20  other, we can work and get something done and we

         21  need to do that soon.

         22                 MR. CAPPELI:  Councilman, you have

         23  our testimony here today that we support in fact a

         24  registration process coupled with a warranty to

         25  protect consumers.  We think that this is an
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          2  appropriate way to in fact protect the buying public

          3  and to weed out many of the people who build who are

          4  not professionals and cut corners and create many of

          5  the problems that exist.  So we are very happy to

          6  work with you on that process.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO:  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  The next panel

          9  is John Kilcullen and Jeff Gallo.  While they are

         10  seating themselves, is there anybody else signed up

         11  to speak on this item?  The people that are coming

         12  for the 11:00 Planning and Landmarks meeting,

         13  subcommittee meeting, we are going to try and find

         14  another room because we are obviously going to go

         15  beyond 11:00.

         16                 Please introduce yourself.

         17                 MR. KILCULLEN:  Good morning, Chair

         18  Avella and Committee Council members.  My name is

         19  John Kilcullen and I'm the Chairman of the St.

         20  George Civic Association which represents the

         21  aforementioned St. George, New Brighton and

         22  Tompkinsville area of Staten Island.

         23                 I'm here to testify in support of the

         24  rezoning applications for Staten Island's north and

         25  mid shore submitted by the Staten Island Borough
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          2  President.

          3                 As you are aware, Staten Island is

          4  facing a serious overdevelopment issue due to

          5  frenzied home building in the borough.  Just like

          6  other parts of our city, public infrastructure,

          7  planning and building has failed to keep pace with

          8  this home building.  One thing the proposed rezoning

          9  will allow this city to do is to catch up with the

         10  new infrastructure improvements.

         11                 With regards to the rezoning

         12  applications for St. George and New Brighton, while

         13  the rezoning application is not a panacea for the

         14  problems facing Staten Island, it is a step in the

         15  right direction along with the Overdevelopment Task

         16  Force recommendations in preserving the unique

         17  character of the neighborhoods predominantly one and

         18  two- family detached housing stock.  This very

         19  housing stock, along with the cultural, ethnic and

         20  economic diversity of our neighborhood attracts both

         21  Staten Islanders and residents from other parts of

         22  the city as well as the country, looking top ut

         23  roots down in this type of low density community.

         24                 Despite concerns and objections from

         25  some that downzoning to R- 3A and R- 3X could hurt
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          2  the community in the long run, other parts of our

          3  neighborhoods will remain zoned for R- 5 and R- 6

          4  higher density development given our proximity to

          5  the ferry.  This will allow St. George and Brighton

          6  as well as Staten Island to grow while preserving

          7  what makes Staten Island unique and different but an

          8  integral part of a five borough City of New York.

          9                 Therefore, I urge the Council to vote

         10  in favor of the rezoning applications.  I thank you

         11  for your time and attention to this important issue

         12  facing Staten Island.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Next speaker.

         14                 MR. GALLO:  Good morning, City

         15  Council members.  My name is Jeff Gallo and I live

         16  in New Brighton on Staten Island.  I support the

         17  downzoning applications.

         18                 Overdevelopment and urban planning is

         19  one of the most important and contentious issues on

         20  Staten Island today.  Unique to the north shore is

         21  the destruction of older established neighborhoods

         22  and the repeated violation of hillside preservation

         23  laws.  The future downzoning has been known for

         24  years and it is now coming into fruition. The

         25  buildings industry and the developers are crying
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          2  foul. Their latest spin on this issue is that they

          3  are providing affordable housing for all New Yorkers

          4  by building townhouses.  The townhouses they build

          5  are not affordable housing when you consider the

          6  prices of existing homes in north shore

          7  neighborhoods from St. George to Mariners Harbor.

          8  Their affordable townhouses prices start in the mid

          9  200,000 range and can go as high as $400,000.  Keep

         10  in mind this is for a townhouse that is usually 16

         11  to 18 feet wide with little or no backyard and few

         12  services.

         13                 There is a large inventory of single-

         14  family affordable detached turn of the century homes

         15  in my area and in surrounding neighborhoods that

         16  sell in the 150 to 275,000 range that are, in my

         17  opinion, far superior than the Army barracks- style

         18  townhouses that are replacing these old homes.  I

         19  have a list of homes and townhouses that are

         20  currently on the market.

         21                 Why are these developers building

         22  these townhouses?  Pure profit, not affordable

         23  housing.  These are not benevolent builders.  They

         24  bulldoze an old house and build two, three or

         25  sometimes up to six townhouses on the same lot.
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          2                 Downzoning to R- 3A will prevent this

          3  on specific blocks.  This is not blanket zoning.

          4  This is not a moratorium and this will not put

          5  builders out of business as the industry claims and

          6  bring Staten Island's economy to a halt.  Affordable

          7  housing will still be built on a more sensible

          8  scale.  The downzoning is not keeping out affordable

          9  housing.

         10                 The north shore is as diverse as any

         11  part of New York and has its share of public

         12  housing.  There are seven public housing

         13  developments, two Section 8 housing complexes,

         14  numerous SROs and a Project Hospitality drop- in

         15  center which last year serviced 3,400 different

         16  homeless individuals.

         17                 On a personal note, I live in New

         18  Brighton and within one block radius of my home

         19  there are two SROs, one is illegal.  There are

         20  Section 8 housing and there are two Project

         21  Hospitality homeless facilities and a group home --

         22  it's actually a group home for St. Vincent's

         23  psychiatric patients which was rezoned

         24  nonresidential and it houses 14 adult males.  Next

         25  door is a large lot which will be developed next to
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          2  my home.  Builders will either build four semi-

          3  attached houses or eight to ten townhouses if the

          4  downzoning is not approved. The builder mentioned

          5  the price for the semi- attached houses will go for

          6  at least $400,000 and the townhouses in the low

          7  300s.

          8                 On my block a friend of mine,

          9  actually friends of mine were priced out of the

         10  market by a developer to purchase a single- family

         11  home and they were priced out by a developer who

         12  overbid them so he can build townhouses and more

         13  dense housing.  Developers are not building

         14  affordable housing.  They are just profiting from

         15  antiquated zoning laws and cashing out with no

         16  regard for the existing community.

         17                 A vote in favor of downzoning of the

         18  north shore is just a first step in helping

         19  communities that up until now were just a cash cow

         20  for builders.  The downzoning will affect a small

         21  percentage of their profits but this will be a

         22  chance to save historic neighborhoods and to help

         23  Staten Island build a better future.  Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  Real quick,

         25  Tony.  I have to be brief because we're way over
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          2  schedule but I just want to thank you guys for

          3  taking the time to come up as civilian volunteers

          4  and kind of rebut the arguments that we've been

          5  hearing this morning and doing it for local civic

          6  leaders and local residents because I think you guys

          7  have said very eloquently the point that we've been

          8  trying to bring across and that you can have

          9  affordable housing in old neighborhoods.  That's the

         10  key and that's what they've been missing.  We're not

         11  against that, we're trying to preserve the

         12  neighborhoods that we have and at the same time

         13  understand that we have to move forward into the

         14  future. You guys did it, both, very well.  We're

         15  very grateful for your time.  Thanks.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  If there is no

         17  one else signed up to speak on this item, I will

         18  close the public hearing.

         19                 Given the historic nature of this,

         20  normally we hold off a vote until the very end and

         21  we vote on all items at once, but I think this is an

         22  historic moment for Staten Island.  I'll ask the

         23  Council to call the vote on these items.  And the

         24  Chair recommends approval, obviously.

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Chair Avella?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Aye on all.

          3                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Council Member

          4  Quinn.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Aye on all.

          6                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Council Member

          7  Baez?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ:  Aye on all.

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Council Member

         10  Gioia?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Yes on all.

         12                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Council Member

         13  Katz?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Aye on all.

         15                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Council Member

         16  McMahon?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON:  If I can

         18  just briefly explain my vote and again time is of

         19  the essence, but I want to stress first of all, all

         20  the thank yous have been said and the points have

         21  been clearly made, but I think that this is a

         22  historic moment, not only for Staten Island

         23  ut I think we're seeing that the issue that we speak

         24  about is being picked up in places like Throggs Neck

         25  and places like the southern Bronx.
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          2                 This is a first step for New York

          3  City to focus more on preservation and focus more on

          4  planning.  No, downzoning is not a good planning

          5  tool, but it's the only tool we have.  What's so

          6  wonderful is that we have the support of our

          7  colleagues from across the city, and I know I speak

          8  for Jim and Andrew as well, that you will have our

          9  support as you address these issues in your own

         10  communities as well.  I wholeheartedly and

         11  emphatically vote yes.

         12                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  The vote

         13  stands at six in the affirmative, none in the

         14  negative, no abstentions, no referral to the full

         15  Land Use Committee.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Yea.  With that,

         17  we will now move on to other items on the agenda.

         18                 Is there anybody signed up to speak

         19  on Land Use No. 513, application by 2092LLC?  Is

         20  there anybody here representing Battery Park City

         21  Authority for Land Use Item 585?

         22                 I'm going to skip around on the

         23  agenda and we're going to go to Land Use Nos. 583

         24  and 584, N030489ZRM, application submitted by WX,

         25  what is that, I guess WXIV Broadway Grand Realty,
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          2  LLC, for an amendment of the zoning resolution to

          3  permit within historic districts the modification of

          4  use regulations on certain zoning lots located in

          5  M1- 5A and M1- 5B Districts and related action on

          6  Land Use 584C030490ZSM.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Excuse me,

          8  Mr. Chair, if I may?   On the Battery Park City

          9  matter, I have had conversations with the Authority.

         10  They are very eager in returning at a time

         11  convenient to the Subcommittee and to the Committee

         12  and discussing that matter with you as appropriate

         13  in the future.  I believe it doesn't matter which

         14  will go forward cooperatively between the Authority

         15  and the community and hopefully the Council.  They

         16  could not be here today but they are eager to

         17  reschedule at the earliest possible convenience.  I

         18  wanted to convey that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  The issue is can

         20  it be rescheduled within the time frame.  We'll have

         21  to check on that.

         22                 MR. LEFKOWIZ:  Chairman Avella,

         23  members of the Council, good morning.  My name is

         24  Stephen Lefkowiz and I represent the applicant on

         25  these two applications.  The first application is
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          2  for a modification of the zoning text relating to

          3  M15A and M15B Districts exclusively in SoHo and NoHo

          4  and relating to areas that have been designated as

          5  historic districts by the New York City Landmarks

          6  Preservation Commission.  This text would allow via

          7  special permit issued by the City Planning

          8  Commission and approved by this body, to permit uses

          9  other than those which are allowed as of right in

         10  this M15A or M15B District. Specifically it would

         11  apply to vacant or substantially vacant lots in

         12  these districts of which there are --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  If I can just

         14  interrupt your testimony for one minute, I

         15  apologize, but the 11:00 Planning and Landmark

         16  Subcommittee meeting will be held on the 16th floor

         17  at 250 Broadway.  So if you're here for that, start

         18  the trip over across the street to 250 Broadway, the

         19  16th floor.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Mr. Chair, if I

         21  could just apologize to you and the Committee

         22  members and to Council Member Gerson whose district

         23  this item is in, I'm going to, since the 11 is in my

         24  district, troop across to 250 as instructed by the

         25  Chair.  So I just wanted to make my apologies about
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          2  why I was leaving.  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I'm sorry, you

          4  can proceed.

          5                 MR. LEFKOWIZ:  Thank you.  The zoning

          6  text change that we have applied for would permit

          7  the City Planning Commission by special permit to

          8  modify uses that would otherwise be permitted in the

          9  district.  We have as a paired application, as the

         10  second application, an application for a special

         11  permit for a specific building at the corner of

         12  Mercer Street, Graham Street and Broadway in SoHo.

         13                 The first application for the zoning

         14  text change would apply to perhaps 16 vacant lots in

         15  SoHo and NoHo, many of which are devoted presently

         16  to parking.  It has been impossible for anyone to

         17  develop these lots over time given the M15A and M15B

         18  designations because I think it's fair to say that

         19  manufacturing uses are no longer viable in SoHo or

         20  NoHo.  They have been leaving the area for probably

         21  30 years and there's very little left.  These lots

         22  because of the restrictions on use have simply not

         23  been developed and have remained as vacant and

         24  rather unsightly spaces within the community.  This

         25  text change would apply to those lots and allow the
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          2  City Planning Commission to permit a different use

          3  than manufacturing use on those blocks.

          4                 We have been to the Landmarks

          5  Preservation Commission which has unanimously and

          6  enthusiastically endorsed and supported the building

          7  we've presented which has been designed by Jean

          8  Nuvelle (phonetic), an eminent French architect of

          9  world fame, and the community I think it's fair to

         10  say has also spoken supportively about the design of

         11  the building.

         12                 When we were at the Community Board,

         13  and we've been there several times, the community

         14  had a number of requests to limit the scope of the

         15  text amendment that we were applying for and

         16  specifically so that the uses that could be

         17  permitted would be only residential above and only

         18  retail below and we've agreed to that.  They

         19  expressed concerns about other uses possibly coming

         20  into the community, but that would no longer be

         21  permitted under the proposed text.  They expressed

         22  concern about a multiplicity of smaller residential

         23  units and we've addressed that. The text now

         24  requires minimum size units of 1200 square feet.

         25  They expressed concern about meeting residential
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          2  bulk regulations and that has been addressed in the

          3  text.  Rear yards must be respected.  They expressed

          4  concerns about compatibility with the community and

          5  that has been addressed in the text.  Now the

          6  commission must find, and in our case they did find,

          7  that the proposed development would be compatible

          8  with the surrounding area, which today I think is

          9  largely residential and retail, as a walk through

         10  the neighborhood I think would demonstrate.  There's

         11  very little by way of manufacturing or wholesaling

         12  left in the community.

         13                 So we have an application for our

         14  building specifically at this location which meets

         15  all of the requirements of the text.  It is within

         16  the allowable floor area ration of five.  It has the

         17  proper rear yard.  It has been approved by the

         18  Landmarks Commission.  It has a minimum size of

         19  residential units of 1200 square feet.  In addition,

         20  we have been asked by the community to agree that

         21  there would be no restaurants allowed in the

         22  building.

         23                 As a matter of trying to respect the

         24  wishes of the community and of the Councilman for

         25  the community, Alan Gerson, we have agreed on our
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          2  own that we would allow no restaurants in this

          3  building.  I understand that there will be proposed

          4  text change to make that official, if you will, in

          5  the text itself that will come before the committee

          6  perhaps tomorrow and we support that change.  We've

          7  already agreed to no restaurants in the building

          8  ourselves.

          9                 We've had further discussions with

         10  the Councilman about gestures or things that we

         11  might do as developers to address the preservation

         12  of the arts community in SoHo and we are very

         13  hopeful of working out an agreement with Councilman

         14  Gerson on that point.  We've been trying to do that

         15  and I think we're making very good progress on that

         16  score.

         17                 That, members of the Council, is our

         18  application.  David Penick, who is one of the

         19  developers from the Heinz organization would like to

         20  speak a little bit about the building so you get

         21  some flavor of that.

         22                 MR. PENICK:  Good morning.  Thank you

         23  for having us.  I think Stephen has really addressed

         24  most of the salient issues.  If I could just briefly

         25  share with you that the building is a 14- story
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          2  building.  The ground floor is largely retail uses

          3  with a lobby.  Floors 2 through 14 will be

          4  residential, approximately 50 or 60 units, which

          5  will average in size 1600 to 1800 square feet each.

          6  All of the bulk FAR height and setback regulations

          7  are in compliance. There are no variances required

          8  for the design of the building.

          9                 The massing of the building consists

         10  of a lower section which also -- which is contextual

         11  in that it approximates the height of the

         12  neighboring buildings on Broadway approximately 85

         13  feet in height.  The facade is a modern

         14  interpretation of the SoHo concept of structural

         15  expression on the outside of the building so you see

         16  a graphic representation of beams and columns on the

         17  outside of the building.

         18                 As Stephen mentioned, the design

         19  architect, Jean Nuvelle, is a very significant

         20  architect with very important work in Paris,

         21  predominantly the Arab Institute (phonetic), the

         22  Cartier Foundation and also the Opera House in

         23  Leone, France.  We're very proud of the work that

         24  he's put in place on this design and look forward to

         25  your support in having it move forward.
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          2                 MR. LEFKOWIZ:  Any questions?  We'd

          3  be happy to answer any questions.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Council Member

          5  Gerson?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chair. First of all, thank you very much, Mr.

          8  Chair, for your leadership and for this hearing and

          9  for your ongoing support to the land use needs of

         10  lower Manhattan including, in this case, the SoHo

         11  and the NoHo communities.  I thank you and I thank

         12  our committee chairman, Linda Katz, as well as our

         13  great staff.

         14                 In the interest of time and in

         15  consideration of the fact that we're going to be

         16  holding off a vote until tomorrow, I'm going to in

         17  general limit my comments and my questions so we

         18  could hear, to the maximum, from all of the

         19  witnesses.  I just want to add or underscore the

         20  point that Mr. Lefkowiz made.  I am very hopeful

         21  between now and tomorrow morning of concluding an

         22  agreement between the developer and the community

         23  that will assure a significant arts presence or

         24  contribution to the arts character of SoHo and NoHo

         25  on the part of this developer.  This development as
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          2  you will hear in subsequent testimony, that is a

          3  critical issue, not only to the community but I

          4  believe to the entire City of New York and we'll be

          5  discussing that as this hearing progresses.  I am

          6  hopeful and will certainly keep you apprised, Mr.

          7  Chair.  Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Any questions

          9  from Committee members?   We'll go to the public

         10  testimony.

         11                 Thank you, gentlemen.

         12                 MR. LEFKOWIZ:  Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I'm going to

         14  call up people in terms of panels, three each in

         15  favor and then in opposition.  Again, I would ask

         16  that you stay within the three minutes.  The first

         17  panel will be David Reck, Harriet Fields.

         18                 Since I'm going through the pile and

         19  these are the first two that I came across in favor,

         20  we'll start with this panel.

         21                 MR. RECK:  Actually the more

         22  important issue -- let me back up a second.  I'm

         23  David Reck.  I'm Chair of Community Board 2, the

         24  Zoning Committee.  I'm also a registered architect.

         25                 Actually the special permit text
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          2  amendment is what I would really like to speak to of

          3  which the project was the first one of all of this.

          4                 There are a couple of very important

          5  things to be understood about this text amendment.

          6  The first one is that it's extremely neighborhood

          7  specific.  This will only affect a very specific

          8  list of vacant lots in SoHo and NoHo.  Those lots

          9  are in the M15B District which is a very specific

         10  zoning that is unique to SoHo and NoHo.  In the

         11  community outreach that was done on this, we were

         12  very much involved in quite a number of community

         13  group meetings leading up to the Board's position

         14  and we also worked extensively with Council Member

         15  Gerson's office and C. Virginia Field's office on

         16  this, so our resolution represents a very broad

         17  consensus of the community.  I have to say that an

         18  awful lot of work by Board members and community

         19  people went into this.  So we take our position

         20  very, very seriously on this.

         21                 Much of what we have recommended has

         22  been incorporated into the zoning text by City

         23  Planning and I'm very happy to see that, so I won't

         24  go into those specific points.  The points I would

         25  like to bring up, though, were a couple of points
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          2  that were neglected by City Planning and we are

          3  asking that the City Council please include them.

          4                 In the discussions on these vacant

          5  lots about what has been happening through Board 2,

          6  essentially our zoning variances, one of our goals

          7  in all of this was to tie down these lots, avoid the

          8  Board of Standards & Appeals, avoid zoning

          9  variances, have a very clear method of proceeding

         10  forward on these sites.  And in that they are

         11  specific to SoHo's and NoHo's special zoning, they

         12  of course reflect issues that are common in the

         13  neighborhood.

         14                 One of the issues in the neighborhood

         15  has been there have been a number of lawsuits on BSA

         16  variances and the community is tired of fighting on

         17  that kind of thing and we want some certainty to all

         18  of this.  In that same vein, though, we have had

         19  community lawsuits on bars and clubs and this has

         20  been a huge, huge problem in NoHo.  I personally

         21  have been involved in suing the SLA a couple of

         22  times over issuing licenses that they really

         23  shouldn't and it's very, very expensive.  It's very

         24  hard to raise money in the community and fight these

         25  bars and clubs, and that is one of the reasons why
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          2  we have asked for a ban on essentially liquor

          3  licenses.  We want to ban restaurants and bars on

          4  these specific sites.

          5                 Also unique to the SOHo and NoHo

          6  area, these artists -- these communities were in

          7  fact founded by artists who spearheaded the zoning

          8  there and established these as world renowned arts-

          9  related communities.  We recognize that in these

         10  specific lots that are at issue here, what is being

         11  proposed is that the requirement for artist in

         12  residence is being given up on these specific sites.

         13    Not through all of SoHo, just on these specific

         14  sites.  So we want to give back on that that will

         15  help maintain the artist quality of SoHo and NoHo,

         16  and that is why we are asking for an arts- related

         17  component.

         18                 Now, in the discussions with the

         19  Community Board, we started coming up with a long

         20  laundry list of what these components might be and

         21  it became obvious to us that what we wanted was some

         22  flexibility in this.  It's also clear, though, that

         23  the Board is not totally locked out once this is

         24  approved.  In reality, each and every one of these

         25  lots would come back again in front of the Community
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          2  Board for the special permit application and we

          3  would get a chance to review the arts- related

          4  component to all of this.  So we wanted to have

          5  flexibility on that aspect and that is why we're a

          6  little bit vague on what the specifics might be.  We

          7  are hoping that the applicants would propose

          8  something more concrete that we would then get a

          9  chance to review.

         10                 I understand my three minutes are up.

         11    I know that this is a huge issue and I hope that

         12  you read our Community Board resolution.  There's a

         13  lot more in it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  We will, and

         15  rest assured we'll read all the testimony that you

         16  submit as well.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON GIOIA:  My name is

         18  Eric Gioia and I'll be chairing the hearing until

         19  Council Member Avella returns.  Miss Jones is it?

         20                 MS. FIELDS:  My name is Harriet

         21  Fields and I'm Executive Director of NoHo, New York,

         22  Business Improvement District.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON GIOIA:  Harriet,

         24  use the microphone right in front of you.

         25                 MS. FIELDS:  I'm sorry.  NoHo New
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          2  York, NoHo Neighborhood Association, the Friends of

          3  NoHo Architecture and Council Member Alan Gerson

          4  have a wonderful working relationship and we have

          5  all come together with an agreeable plan.

          6                 I am here today to talk about the art

          7  component.  It is so important to our area that the

          8  NoHo New York Bid, Pratt Institute, Parsons School

          9  of Design, NYU and the Dumbo area are getting

         10  together to put on an event.  What we're going to do

         11  is have -- and it's called NoHo New York Art Walk.

         12  Artists from all over, especially our neighborhood,

         13  are going to have their work in the store windows

         14  for the week of January 20th to the 25th.  We want

         15  to show everybody how many artists there are, how

         16  important it is to maintain our area and I hope that

         17  you can all come and take a look.  We're also going

         18  to have loft tours, art loft tours that surrounds

         19  that old -- in other words, this should be an

         20  impact, from my point of view, that we're serious

         21  about this art component.  I really, really

         22  appreciate your listening to me and thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you for

         25  your time and thank you for being brief.
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          2                 I'd like to call up the next panel.

          3  Any questions?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Mr. Chair --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Oh, pardon me.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Just a brief

          7  comment. Again, if I may, for a moment address my

          8  two esteemed colleagues, Mr. Chair, yourself, and my

          9  good friend, Council Member Baez. You're going to

         10  hear from, to underscore a point of the testimony,

         11  you're going to hear from these and subsequent

         12  witnesses a real plea and outcry from our community

         13  that the Council join with the community in making a

         14  real last ditch effort to preserve the remaining

         15  core of arts and arts activity in these historic

         16  arts communities. The reason we need to do this is

         17  because, as the witness said, on these lots we will

         18  be losing the artis certification requirement which

         19  exists in existing buildings throughout SoHo and

         20  NoHo currently because the City Planning Commission

         21  has so decreed, but the cry and the plea is that

         22  something be put in place that recognizes arts

         23  activity as a protected and valuable land use

         24  activity in group.  Because of the nature of the

         25  applications we're talking about SoHo and NoHo. I
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          2  believe one is this is important to the economy of

          3  the entire city but, two, it will set a precedent

          4  for arts communities, fledgling and established arts

          5  communities, throughout the city including in your

          6  district, in your boroughs and I think as we move

          7  forward creatively on this Council to recognize the

          8  arts as an important land use group for protection

          9  against short term economic fluctuations which would

         10  otherwise decimate the arts communities, we'll be

         11  serving all of the city and all of the arts

         12  communities by precedent in all of our 51 Council

         13  districts.  I just wanted to call your attention to

         14  that very important point.  Again, I'll continue to

         15  try to refrain and be very brief.  Thank you very

         16  much, Mr. Chair.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you,

         18  Council Member.  Thank you for testifying.

         19                 I'd like to call our group of next

         20  three witnesses.  Donald MacPherson, Zella Jones and

         21  Sean Sweeney.

         22                 MR. SWEENEY:  Hi, I'm Sean Sweeney,

         23  Director of the SoHo Alliance.  We have 900 members.

         24    We were founded in 1979.  The offshoot of the SoHo

         25  Artist Association.  We are the people who fought
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          2  Robert Moses to preserve cast iron architecture.

          3  We've changed zoning to permit artists

          4  working/living quarters.  We landmarked SoHo.  I

          5  personally developed a small five- story building.

          6  We have nothing against development.  We wish

          7  appropriate development. However, City Planning

          8  doesn't quite see it that way.  They have come

          9  around many times to our proposal.  The original

         10  proposal was horrendous but they still don't get the

         11  fact that bars and restaurants are a major problem

         12  in the area.

         13                 There are several problems with this

         14  that we would like to address.  We're lost a

         15  thousand parking spaces; we're going to lose another

         16  thousand.  There is no alternate side or meters in

         17  SoHo so where are the people going to park.  So

         18  that's going to be a big problem as a result of

         19  this.  What does the community get out of this?

         20  There's also going to be a loss of lighting in there

         21  with City Planning which would affect artists.  City

         22  Planning has given us a 30 foot rear yard extension,

         23  so we appreciate that.

         24                 According to a Columbia study that we

         25  did, that the Alliance did in 1996, 56% of the
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          2  respondent were artists, 76% were in an arts-

          3  related fields and the average resident lived in

          4  SoHo for 16 years, a remarkable amount of time.

          5  We're a stable community.  People just don't move

          6  out because you got a good deal 20 years ago.

          7                 The major problem, however, is the

          8  bars and restaurants.  This proposal could transform

          9  our community into restaurant row.  There are 27

         10  zoning laws going to be affected by this.  According

         11  to the U.S. Census and Zagat's review of -- there is

         12  one restaurant for every -- there's one restaurant

         13  for eery 100 residents, a clear case of

         14  oversaturation.  The courts have confirmed that SoHo

         15  is oversaturated with licensed restaurants.  In

         16  1997, a landmark decision by New York State Supreme

         17  Court Justice Abdus Salam (phonetic) prohibited all

         18  new liquor license applications within 500 feet of

         19  72 Grand, a mere two blocks from this application.

         20  According to the Judge's Order, there can be no

         21  restaurants or liquor licenses within 500 feet of

         22  Worcester and Grand.  This is 18 acres of SoHo.

         23  Judicial order has already restricted bars and

         24  restaurants. That's 18% -- SoHo has a hundred acres,

         25  so already 20% of SoHo, by judicial order, has bars
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          2  and restaurants restricted.

          3                 We also have -- this is a very

          4  neighborhood specific plan.  Our neighborhood has

          5  very specific restrictions that are in existence

          6  already on eating and drinking establishments.  We

          7  have a 5,000 square foot maximum.  Not even a

          8  special permit could exceed that.

          9                 We have a ban on sidewalk cafes.

         10  We're the only neighborhood specifically mentioned

         11  by name in the text and you can't even buy a hot dog

         12  on West Broadway.  So we think this is enough, that

         13  the zoning already has restricted eating and

         14  drinking, the Department of Consumer Affairs has

         15  restricted eating and drinking and the courts have

         16  restricted eating and drinking.  So I really don't

         17  think City Planning -- the fact that Amanda Burden

         18  states that it adds vitality to her neighborhood, I

         19  really don't think the Chairwoman of the City

         20  Planning has 18 bars or restaurants on her block on

         21  Park Avenue.

         22                 So, in conclusion, we'd just like to

         23  reiterate that basically we support the text as it

         24  is now with some minor changes.  We would like to

         25  see eating and drinking establishments restricted on
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          2  these 27 lots.  We'd like to see units -- and we

          3  also don't mind having residential units.  We are

          4  not opposed to development at all.

          5                 We approve this plan as a hotel and

          6  as a residential building.  We'd like to see lofts

          7  greater than 1200 square foot to keep with the

          8  neighborhood character.  That's what the

          9  neighborhood character is, lofts, not bars and

         10  restaurants.  Thank you, sir.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Mr. Sweeney,

         12  thank you.

         13                 Press the red button.  When it's off,

         14  it's on.  When it's on, it's off, that how it works.

         15                 MR. MacPHERSON:  I want to thank the

         16  remaining members to listen to what we have to say. My

         17  name is Don MacPherson.  I publish the SoHo Journal.

         18  We have quite a few readers here as well as in the

         19  Hamptons. I'm here to talk about the essential part

         20  of the problems that we face, one of which is having

         21  been awakened at 3:00 in the morning, hearing shots

         22  and seeing people running down the street at 3:00 in

         23  the morning.  It was quite an amazing experience

         24  when you live in this area. But that is the result

         25  of what has happened with the so-called eating and
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          2  drinking establishments that have turned into

          3  lounges and nightclubs and that is one of the

          4  reasons why we have a great deal of objection to any

          5  more of them because it's not a question of whether

          6  we can have more nightclubs or restaurants or bars,

          7  it's whether anything else can come in and fit in

          8  between the other stores. Because in fact West

          9  Broadway is a long strip on two sides of the street

         10  as well as the other side streets, including Grand

         11  Street.  It is nothing but eating and drinking

         12  establishments a/k/a lounges and clubs which are

         13  running 'til two, three, 4:00 in the morning and has

         14  people running around with razor blades under their

         15  tongues that don't show at 8:00 at night, but

         16  certainly show at 11 or 12:00 at night when the

         17  motorcycles are lined up.  That is the problem.

         18                 To have to deal with shots being

         19  fired on our streets, which is what has happened,

         20  that I have not only heard but seen, people running

         21  down the street afterwards, since I live in the

         22  area, is a problem that cannot be permitted to go

         23  on.  It doesn't matter what the disguise is or what

         24  it should be, but what it actually becomes.

         25                 The other part of the problem is the
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          2  arts.  I grew up in the area and I remember loading

          3  and unloading paper in the '50s and spent my

          4  childhood in the '40s in what is now SoHo.  It was

          5  nothing but an area which was manufacturing.  It

          6  then became an artists' area because the guys coming

          7  back from the Second World War developed SoHo, not

          8  to cast aspersion on women, women as well as men,

          9  they took over and created a place that everybody

         10  wants to be, a place where people want to build

         11  buildings by noted architects.  It's not Paris, it's

         12  SoHo.

         13                 The fact of the matter is that two

         14  years ago when they were ripping out sculptures by

         15  Bobos (phonetic) and the triangle down on Broom

         16  Street and throwing them into dumpsters, they were

         17  removing the heritage of SoHo.  So let's keep the

         18  heritage of SoHo and let's give the arts money so

         19  that we can have why they are now here, to take

         20  advantage of what the artists created.  Thank you.

         21                 MS. JONES:  Good morning.  My name is

         22  Zella Jones.  I'm a resident of NoHo.  I have been

         23  for 30 years. I'm Chair of the NoHo Neighborhood

         24  Association.

         25                 I'll largely address the impact of
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          2  this zoning text change on NoHo.  For the most part,

          3  we would much prefer a special permit process to a

          4  BSA process, but we find the language that the City

          5  Planning Commission has proposed for this is lacking

          6  in several respects.  I'm heartened to know that the

          7  concept of preserving an already established,

          8  thriving neighborhood is alive and well on Staten

          9  Island.

         10                 Now, I am here to beg the same wisdom

         11  of the city Planning Commission and the City Council

         12  Land Use Committee on items 583 and 584 pertaining

         13  to NoHo and SoHo. While we prefer the special permit

         14  protection of the City Planning Commission to

         15  variance applications of the BSA, these proposed

         16  language changes miss major factors and need

         17  amendment.

         18                 According to the New York City

         19  search, there are, in zip code 10012, which is

         20  largely NoHo, 261 art galleries.  There are also 394

         21  restaurants and 282 bars and nightclubs.  The bars

         22  and nightclubs, that's 32 more than exist in Times

         23  Square.  Here's a short list of the artists who live

         24  and work in condominiums and lofts in NoHo alone.

         25  June Leaf, Robert Frank, Emma Amos, Elliott
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          2  Barowitz, Edward Grazda, Nina Gross, Diane Azemov,

          3  Gary Hill, Lee Magrin, Fran Dropkins, Susan Smith,

          4  Sandy Gellis, Nancy Muller, Jean Noblet, Annie

          5  Shaver- Crandall, Stan Reese, Chuck Close and

          6  Harriet Fields.  There are also small and off

          7  broadway theaters:  The Jean Carpto Theater

          8  (phonetic), the 45 Bleeker Theater, the Jean Frankel

          9  Theater, LaMama, the Bowery Lane Theater, the New

         10  York Shakespeare Festival and PAP Theater and the

         11  Amato Opera.

         12                 Our business that support or promote

         13   --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  We have the list

         15  in front of us.  You don't have to read every single

         16  name.  You can continue testifying but you don't

         17  have to -- just to save time, you don't have to

         18  enumerate each of the -- I'm reading the list along

         19  with you.

         20                 MS. FIELDS:  Oh, wonderful.  I didn't

         21  know that you had it.  I beg your pardon.

         22                 I have documented here 310

         23  entrepreneurial art- based and art- related

         24  enterprises that would not exist if it were not for

         25  the enterprise zone that is involved from joint
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          2  living/working quarters and AIR zoning in NoHo.

          3                 I'll give you another example of what

          4  this area means to New York City and its

          5  contribution to the world at large as an arts mecca.

          6    Within hours of the World Trade Center's tragedy,

          7  hundreds of photographers, professional and amateur,

          8  tacked up their images of suffering and triumph and

          9  perseverance and compassion on the windows of a

         10  deserted gallery on Prince Street in SoHo. With what

         11  is in our neighborhood instant recognition for

         12  significant expression, the owner opened his doors

         13  and collected more than 10,000 images.  It became

         14   "Here is New York, a Democracy of Photographs."  In

         15  the first month it attracted 1 million visitors.

         16  Within six months this remarkable collection of

         17  donated photography from amateurs and professionals

         18  alike yielded almost a million dollars to the

         19  Children's Aid Society which went to children of

         20  affected families.  By the end of one year the show

         21  had traveled to Brussels, Dusseldorf, London, Paris,

         22  Tokyo and finally to the National Gallery of Art in

         23  Washington, D.C. Where it commanded the largest

         24  attendance ever in their history.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  If you wouldn't
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          2  mind just concluding right now.

          3                 MS. JONES:  Certainly.  We are at a

          4  critical cross roads as we contemplate provisions

          5  that would allow development of buildings without

          6  provision for space designated to ensure the

          7  continuity of arts and entrepreneurs in SoHo and

          8  NoHo.  Zoning changes that will expose their fragile

          9  and precious resource through crushing market

         10  sources with which they cannot compete, is short

         11  sighted.

         12                 There are those who feel it is time

         13  for NoHo and SoHo to grow, and we don't argue

         14  against it's evolution, but it's essential that in

         15  doing so we preserve the covenants that encourage a

         16  built environment in which our artistic and creative

         17  resources can continue to flourish. Buildings

         18  without covenants to mandate artistic users are

         19  inconsistent with and ultimately destructive to the

         20  very characteristics that attract investment to our

         21  neighborhoods.  Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you for

         23  your testimony.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Mr. Chair,

         25  one very brief question.  Miss Jones, since you're
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          2  the one who enumerated the different users, I'll

          3  just, in the interest of time, direct it to you.

          4  Are you familiar with the 5% set aside proposal and

          5  would that help achieve the goals?

          6                 MS. JONES:  Absolutely.  We are open

          7  to many creative ways.  We can't ignore evolution.

          8  We can have communal outwork spaces, we can have

          9  galleries in vestibules of buildings, we can have

         10  set aside for our artists to live and work.  We need

         11  to maintain the 1200 square foot unit minimum, but

         12  we're more than willing to be creative as long as we

         13  keep the character of our neighborhood.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  And the set

         15  aside would be critical.

         16                 MS. JONES:  The set aside would be

         17  critical.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Thank you

         19  very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you, Miss

         21  Jones. Thank you the rest of the panel.

         22                 The next panel is Marie Dormuth,

         23  Doris Diether.  Miss Diether had to leave.  I think

         24  she submitted written testimony.  Audrey Code and

         25  Thompson from Crosby Street.  Mr. Thompson, pardon
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          2  me for not knowing your first name.  Please begin

          3  your testimony.

          4                 MS. DORMUTH:  Good morning, Council

          5  Members. Thank you for those that have stayed.  I am

          6  aware I'm speaking to a lot of empty chairs, which

          7  makes me sad.

          8                 First of all, we've heard a lot of

          9  elegant speeches about the arts.  I can't believe

         10  that the intellectual approach and the vision of the

         11  people who came up and testified could miss the main

         12  bottom line of this proposal and that is it offers

         13  nothing for the arts, nothing.  It's going to be

         14  apartment buildings for the first time allowed in

         15  SoHo and NoHo.  When artists living in work quarters

         16  has been the greatest innovation in our

         17  neighborhood, other cities are copying us, why

         18  aren't we calling for artists living in work

         19  quarters to be built? That's the least that we could

         20  ask for.

         21                 It's amazing that this zoning also

         22  takes away artist certification.  And what does that

         23  mean?  It means the character and the identity of

         24  these neighborhoods.  In a few months we go up to

         25  Albany and the loft law will be hopefully renewed.
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          2  It's taken 20 years for senators in Rochester and

          3  all over the State of New York to understand the

          4  importance and the power of the art industry and the

          5  importance of live/work housing.  What are we going

          6  to tell them this time when we go up to Albany, the

          7  artists are gone, we don't need artist certification

          8  anymore?  If a developer can sell lofts to anyone on

          9  one block and on the other block they have to be

         10  artists, guess what's going to happen.  Artist

         11  certification is going to be gone.

         12                 This is the first mortal blow and

         13  it's incorrect, it's wrong and it may be illegal

         14  because where is Cultural Affairs Department this

         15  morning?  This is their program.  This is part of

         16  the foundation that protects artists' housing.

         17  These lots are the potential future sites for

         18  artists' housing.  I cannot believe that it's gone

         19  this far.  I'm just devastated, and I want to tell

         20  the Council, I chaired the Zoning Committee for ten

         21  years on Community Board 2.  I'm an art professor

         22  and I'm also a member of Lower Manhattan Loft

         23  Tenants for 20 years.  Lower Manhattan Loft Tenants

         24  has a strong position to protect artist

         25  certification.  I don't see how this zoning text can
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          2  move along with some, and excuse me I know I'm

          3  offending people, and that seems to be my heritage,

          4  but what is this art component when you're taking

          5  away a foundation that protects at least half of

          6  SoHo and NoHo, the rental community.  So what is the

          7  arts component?  It's imaginary, it's fluff and

          8  let's build artists living in work quarters and

          9  protect the important zoning we have.  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Will you please

         11  remain seated until the rest of the testimony, for

         12  any potential questions?  Thank you.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Excuse me,

         14  Mr. Chair, a point of information just to my

         15  community.  If I may assure my community -- no, no,

         16  no, please understand that Council member schedules

         17  sometimes prohibit them from attending every

         18  committee meeting of the committees on which they

         19  are assigned, but I assure you that, especially with

         20  the presence of Council Members Gioia, McMahon and

         21  Baez and the other Council members who will be in

         22  and out, the entire committee will be made familiar

         23  with your testimony and with the record, and you

         24  should not feel that because there are some empty

         25  chairs that the testimony will not be heeded or
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          2  studied and is not important.  It in fact will be

          3  very important to the committee's and the Council's

          4  deliberations.  I just want to assure everyone of

          5  that.

          6                 MS. CODE:  Good morning.  My name is

          7  Audrey Code and I'm a painter and on the Board of

          8  the Grand Street Artists Co- op, which consists of

          9  64, 66 and 70 Grand Street and 33 Worcester Street

         10  which houses the Worcester Group Theater.  The co-

         11  op was founded in 1968 and many of the original

         12  artists still live and work there.  Our co- op

         13  directly faces on a large parking lot on Grand

         14  Street that was bought by NYU several years ago.

         15  Should they build a dorm or a similar structure

         16  there, all of our light would be gone, not to

         17  mention the entire character of the street and the

         18  quality of our lives and of our work, which would be

         19  diminished.

         20                 Yesterday I read in the Times that

         21  the Landmarks Committee was harassing a SoHo co- op

         22  because their fire escape was not the same as the

         23  original.  How ironic, I thought, that the Landmarks

         24  is worried about the look of a fire escape, yet the

         25  city would be willing to sacrifice the entire
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          2  character of a landmark neighborhood to be changed

          3  forever by voting for this zoning change.

          4                 I implore you to vote no on this

          5  proposal to change the zoning in SoHo.  Thank you.

          6                 MR. THOMPSON:  It's still good

          7  morning I see. My name is Gene Thompson.  I'm a

          8  member of 55 Block Crosby Block Association.  I'm a

          9  certified artist with the Department of Cultural

         10  Affairs and I've been an artist in this city for 28

         11  years, a domestic immigrant from California.  I want

         12  to thank you for this opportunity to talk here to

         13  this Community Board.

         14                 As you know, the community is very

         15  vital to the arts in this city and a lot of us have

         16  been participants from the ground up.  I was

         17  thankful very much for the passing of the loft law

         18  which enabled me to survive here and also the very

         19  fact it gave me leverage to be able to own my place

         20  when it was available for sale.  That's a real big

         21  thank you from all of us.  I'm a good example of

         22  what the laws can do in this country and in this

         23  state. But there are some concerns I have here.

         24                 When I first came here to SoHo of

         25  course all of us were artists and a lot of us drank

                                                            101

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  and other things, had parties, I will admit that.

          3  But there were only three bars that I know of that

          4  were in SoHo proper and that was the Broom Street

          5  Bar, Ken's Broom Street Bar, at Broom and West

          6  Broadway, Spring Street Bar at Prince and West

          7  Broadway and Finelly's (phonetic) at Prince and

          8  Worcester Street. But now, as you've heard the

          9  testimony, there are a tremendous amount of bars.

         10                 Basically I'm here to come up with

         11  the -- well, to want to prohibit any more bars built

         12  in or having licenses, liquor licenses in this

         13  community.  I mean it's just getting out of hand.

         14                 I'm also concerned about the heights

         15  of buildings here that may be built.  I'm very much

         16  concerned with what this Councilperson here said to

         17  the left, and arts components, yes, but all of us

         18  realize that there is an involvement here in this

         19  community and we are not against involvement.  After

         20  all, we as artists have come up with some of the

         21  most interesting ideas in this country.  I notice

         22  now that a lot of the architects that are practicing

         23  now have used some of the earlier conceptual ideas

         24  promoted by fine artists, sculptors and painters

         25  alike and vice versa.  So I see a real opportunity
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          2  here to try to keep this community the way it is.

          3  I'm not against the idea of building a building, but

          4  let's build it in the pathway of the development

          5  towards the arts.  After all, this community has

          6  really benefitted New York City and brought in, in a

          7  way, too many tourists, but it really is vibrant and

          8  we'd like to see it stay that way.  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Next panel is

         10  Emma Amos, Mary Chatham and Joshua Simons.

         11                 MS. AMOS:  My name is Emma Amos.  I'm

         12  an artist and a professor and I was very, very

         13  interested in the testimony that we had previously

         14  from our other professor, Maria Dormuth.

         15                 I'm not adverse to the changes that

         16  are being made.  My hands go out.  I know that we'll

         17  never see AIR again in NoHo and SoHo.  I've lived in

         18  the Village and in SoHo for over 35 years and I know

         19  that change has to happen, but you must remember

         20  that we made these neighborhoods. This has been

         21  said, but what I think you may not realize is that

         22  across this country people look to New York for a

         23  place to work.  I lecture in every city in this

         24  country and I can tell you artists come to New York

         25  and we are losing them to Brooklyn, we're losing
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          2  them to all the little cities around New Jersey.

          3  I'm a professor at Rutgers and people are settling,

          4  making their art careers in New Brunswick because we

          5  are not giving them the support that they need to be

          6  where they want to be.  Pretty soon we'll look

          7  around and there will be nothing, just a whole bunch

          8  of us older artists living in the area.  I would not

          9  like to see that happen. I believe it's essential

         10  that we have the art supports in these buildings.

         11                 I think it's very important that they

         12  stay within the height limits that are going in the

         13  neighborhood, and I also think that without parking

         14  we're all going to suffer, that the businesses that

         15  are in the area are not going to be able to

         16  continue.  So that's my testimony. Thank you.

         17                 MR. SIMONS:  Yes, good morning.  My

         18  name is Josh Simons.  I am President of the Crosby

         19  Street Block Association, Incorporated.

         20                 We successfully fought a late night

         21  bar that was opening in our block.  We have

         22  organized our community to hire legal help.  We also

         23  fought the BSA granting a variance to a very large

         24  building on Lafayette Street which we successfully

         25  brought down from 16 stories to 11 stories. This
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          2  building was really out of character with the entire

          3  community.  So we haven't been happy with what has

          4  happened with the BSA but, at the same time, we're

          5  very concerned that the community retain its

          6  essential character.

          7                 I'm a 20 year resident.  I raised my

          8  kids in the community and it's the essential artists

          9   -- it's the artists that have created this and the

         10  artistic character is what draws people to our

         11  neighborhood.  Over the weekends you can see the

         12  number of people that are drawn to the neighborhood.

         13    In fact, it's extremely overcrowded.  There is no

         14  parking.  There is constant traffic jam.  So I think

         15  one of the issues that's been raised about the

         16  parking is of great concern to us.

         17                 We're also very concerned about this

         18  proliferation of late night eating and drinking

         19  establishments.  Right now we are just inundated

         20  with these establishments and it really alters the

         21  essential character of what is a very close

         22  neighborhood.

         23                 We'd also like to, as members of the

         24  Crosby Street community we'd also like to request

         25  that some of the language here be applied to SoHo as
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          2  a whole, not just to the Landmark District, because

          3  in fact SoHo extends and it's in some of these other

          4  areas that a lot of the bars have been crowding out.

          5                 I'd just like to say that, in

          6  conclusion, that we really are very concerned about

          7  this proposal.  We really want to retain the

          8  character of the neighborhood and to stop the number

          9  of bars that have been growing in this community.

         10  Thank you very much.

         11                 MS. CHATHAM:  I also live on Crosby

         12  Street and am a member of the Crosby Street Block

         13  Association.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Please introduce

         15  yourself.

         16                 MS. CHATHAM:  My name is Mary

         17  Chatham.  I live at 55 Crosby Street.  I'm a

         18  certified artist and have lived in SoHo for 27

         19  years.  I live on a block that has been very quiet.

         20  Most people live and work in their lofts.  We have

         21  large windows where lots of sound reverberates.

         22                 We are currently -- our block is

         23  currently fighting two liquor licenses that are

         24  before the SLA.  The noise and disruption that comes

         25  to the block every time a new restaurant or bar sets
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          2  up is huge, and we have several artists in the block

          3  who've moved out to Brooklyn, to Long Island, just

          4  because they can't survive in the day of the trucks

          5  picking up garbage, at night the motorcycles and

          6  people out in the street 'til three or 4 a.m. In the

          7  morning.

          8                 I think everyone in SoHo realizes

          9  that the parking lots will probably be built on at

         10  some point but we, the residents, really need the

         11  Planning Commission to consider the unique nature of

         12  SoHo, what made SoHo great and how the arts can be

         13  maintained and allowed to survive in the

         14  neighborhood.  Thank you.

         15                 MR. ORENSENZ:  Good afternoon.  My

         16  name is Al Orensenz.  I'm the Director of the Anjel

         17  Orensenz Foundation at 172 Norfolk Street, slightly

         18  to the east of SoHo and NoHo.  We have a similar

         19  vision of the urban design of our neighborhood.

         20                 I've been talking about these issues

         21  with several individual artists and groups in our

         22  immediate neighborhood and we strongly support this

         23  art component.  We believe that in our own

         24  neighborhood there's the largest concentration of

         25  talent in the arts; music, graphic design,
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          2  sculpture, painting, performing arts.  The largest

          3  concentration in the country.

          4                 In spite of what we have heard here

          5  about performing spaces and exhibiting spaces, the

          6  truth of the matter is that hundreds of thousands of

          7  artists go without having a chance to present their

          8  work, to interact with our neighbors, and to present

          9  their ideas and to put their works out so people can

         10  see them, interact with them and benefit from them.

         11  I think that by implementing serious systematically

         12  forcibly the 5% on new buildings we'll have a chance

         13  to have our talent pool properly served or at least

         14  better served as is presently.  Thank you very much

         15  for your time.

         16                 MR. BARTLETT:  Hello.  I'm Paul

         17  Bartlett. I'm formerly an urban planner that used to

         18  work for the Department of City Planning from 1980

         19  to 1985 and specifically worked on the M15A and M15B

         20  Zoning District, which is being proposed to change.

         21  I authored certain text changes myself that the City

         22  Planning Commission had proposed and have been

         23  working in the areas of our industry and the economy

         24  as an urban planner and other capacities. I'm

         25  currently on leave from Queens College.
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          2                 What disturbs me about this new

          3  special permit is the absence of art component.  In

          4  1980 we passed the M15, M15B zoning restriction

          5  along with other legislation in the State Assembly

          6  and Senate.  Basically the planners had to keep --

          7  catch up with what the art community had developed

          8  on their own in vacant and underutilized space.

          9  There was a lot of conflict between manufacturing

         10  uses, residential uses and artists.  We were able to

         11  successfully work that out.

         12                 SoHo is internationally known as an

         13  art community that has produced a lot of significant

         14  art and video and other types of -- just besides

         15  visual art, which has been tremendously important

         16  for our economy.  We have a cluster there of artists

         17  that still exists that other cities would do

         18  anything to have and they spend a lot of resources

         19  in other cities trying to get something close to

         20  SoHo.  They may be lucky if they get 10% of what we

         21  have in SoHo, spending millions of dollars in tax

         22  subsidy.

         23                 With the critical mass of art you

         24  support from all over.  I've been living on the

         25  lower east side since I came here in 1980 and the
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          2  art there has come and gone.  It's gotten wiped out

          3  by market forces.  We've lost most of our art

          4  galleries, most of our theaters and most recently

          5  our theater rehearsal spaces.  Basically, artists

          6  have to come from somewhere.  They need rehearsal

          7  space, they need performance space, they need art

          8  galleries.  So it would be a shame to lose that.

          9                 This is the first text change I've

         10  seen coming through for SoHo/NoHo that doesn't have

         11  an arts component.  This is very tragic that that's

         12  not being included.

         13                 There are many creative solutions to

         14  arts that other cities have developed when they have

         15  been trying to copy what we have done in New York

         16  and we can use them. And a special permit process is

         17  probably the ideal place to start experimenting with

         18  them in New York City.  Special permits gives a lot

         19  of discretion at this point to use different types

         20  of elements.  There's things like land trusts and

         21  other types of planning innovations that can be used

         22  to bring in arts to a space like this.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you,

         24  gentlemen. The last panel is George -- I'm terrible

         25  at reading these things -- will the Council member
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          2  from the district help me out here.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Oh, yeah.

          4  George.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I could have

          6  said that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  George

          8  Ennenga, but I think he left.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Ed Grazda.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  He's behind

         11  the board, I'm sorry.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Is there anybody

         13  else who wishes to speak on this item?

         14                 MALE SPEAKER:  Ed Grazda?

         15                 MR. GRAZDA:  That's me.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Please go ahead.

         17                 MR. GRAZDA:  Hi.  My name is Ed

         18  Grazda.  I'm a 30 year resident of NoHo, and I would

         19  just like to say that the quality of life in NoHo

         20  has steadily gone down daily in the past 20 years.

         21  I'd also like to pose a question to the Board.  Why

         22  has the zoning not been enforced in SoHo and NoHo

         23  for the past 20 years?  That's my real issue that I

         24  wanted to ask Mr. Gerson and other people at other

         25  meetings.  It's my understanding that the zoning
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          2  people were under orders not to enforce the zoning

          3  in SoHo and NoHo.  Why?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  Well, first

          5  of all, what are you talking about in terms of what

          6  zoning has not been enforced?

          7                 MR. GRAZDA:  Artists in residence,

          8  retail space on ground floors, all of those things,

          9  bars.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I mean

         11  obviously those questions should be directed to the

         12  Department of Buildings.  As Chair of this

         13  committee, if you give me some specifics, I'd be

         14  more than happy to pass that on to the DOB and see

         15  why they're not, you know, enforcing existing

         16  regulations.  I'd be more than happy to do that.

         17                 MR. GRAZDA:  I don't have specific

         18  things, but I'm sure that there's a tremendous

         19  amount of people living in SoHo and NoHo where it's

         20  zoned for artist, you know, registered artists who

         21  are not artists.

         22                 MALE SPEAKER:  I know, but the

         23  question becomes of -- I'm sorry, Alan.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  No, go ahead,

         25  please.
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          2                 MALE SPEAKER:  The question becomes

          3  of limited resources within the agency.  And I'm not

          4  defending the agency by any stretch of the

          5  imagination but I know if we go to them and say the

          6  issue that you just brought to my attention, they're

          7  going to say, well, tell us where.  We're not going

          8  to go out and survey an entire community.  I mean,

          9  see what you can do to come up with some locations

         10  and I'd be more than happy to work with your Council

         11  member to get the DOB to go out there and take a

         12  look at the situation.

         13                 MR. GRAZDA:  Thanks.  And also the

         14  issue of parking that other people have -- we've

         15  lost numerous parking lots.  As it is there is no

         16  parking and that should be addressed somewhere.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  If I might

         18  just add, and this is actually a fitting note to end

         19  up this portion of the committee meeting and the

         20  hearing, because enforcement, as you pointed out,

         21  has been easily a struggle in this community for

         22  well more over a decade, probably two decades, as

         23  you said, at least.  And it has been deficient

         24  unacceptably on the part of the enforcing agencies,

         25  both the Department of Buildings and the, when it
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          2  comes to artist certification, the Department of

          3  Cultural Affairs.  We've begun to make progress on a

          4  building- by- building, block- by block in that way

          5  and I'm happy to work with you on particulars, but

          6  it is essentially the policy of the administration

          7  not to enforce the artist certification requirement,

          8  not to attempt to do that and that is what we are up

          9  to at this stage and that is why,. Madam and Mr.

         10  Chair, it is so critical as we go forward if you

         11  that we creatively find ways to preserve and to

         12  assure the core arts component of these, of the SoHo

         13  and NoHo communities, both for the sake of the

         14  communities, of the sake of the city and as a

         15  precedent for other art communities elsewhere.  So

         16  enforcement and enforceability need to be the

         17  critical goals as we go forward.  I'll certainly

         18  work with you on specific issues.

         19                 Mr. Chair, may I ask, is anyone still

         20  here from the Department of City Planning?  I

         21  understand that they, and I respect their decision

         22  in view of the fact that we're voting tomorrow on

         23  them not to testify today, but I think it's a shame

         24  that they had a whole caucus out there and not one

         25  person chose to remain to at least hear the
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          2  community.  I certainly will convey to them the

          3  outcry and the plea on the part of the community

          4  that as we go forward we shore up, and I won't

          5  reiterate, but we preserve the arts component and we

          6  prevent the excessive proliferation of bars and

          7  clubs.

          8                 There's nothing for me to add to the

          9  eloquent testimony you heard.  I just want to

         10  conclude where I began, Mr. Chair, Madam Chair,

         11  thanking you so much not only for this hearing but

         12  for your ongoing support.  Our communities should

         13  know that we're fortunate to have two such

         14  upstanding and concerned leaders.  Thank you very,

         15  very much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  I understand

         17  that George has returned so he would like to --

         18  please.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON:  I thought I

         20  saw you behind the board before.  I know it's been a

         21  long day.  Thanks, George.

         22                 MR. ENNENGA:  George Ennenga.  I'm

         23  part of the Property Association Co- Ops by Canal.

         24  I was the head of the SoHo Alliance for many years.

         25  I'm a certified artist, exhibit all around the
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          2  world.  I've published with MIT Press and Oxford

          3  University Press.  I'm here to lend my support to

          4  the notion of artist certificates being added to the

          5  requirements.

          6                 I want to direct your attention to

          7  the questions that were asked at the Planning

          8  Commission hearing by several commissioners.  They

          9  both said, both of the questions were what can we do

         10  to maintain the community of SoHo.  Regrettably, it

         11  wasn't answered in the depth by the Community Board

         12  that it should have been.  The straightforward way

         13  to maintain the character of the neighborhood is to

         14  enforce the way in which it was built. The cultural

         15  community grew because there were requirements for

         16  artists to use these spaces and not just anyone.  So

         17  to maintain the character of the neighborhood, you

         18  simply require the certificates to be in place.

         19                 As a governance issue and one that

         20  the city mothers and fathers should be looking to is

         21  just how important it will be to maintain a district

         22  in Manhattan that actually is different from all the

         23  others, that is not homogenized, that is not up

         24  ended by poor regulation.  The governance of this

         25  part of New York will be most dated by confirming
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          2  the cultural center of SoHo by this stipulation for

          3  new buildings.  There's plenty of them.  There are

          4  plenty of people to buy them.  And all you have to

          5  do is say certificates will be required.

          6                 Now, no one believes it's going to be

          7  perfect.  Just when you post a 65 mile an hour speed

          8  limit you don't expect absolutely everyone driving

          9  66 to be ticketed.  You expect that the people

         10  driving 85 to be ticketed and those driving 40 to be

         11  ticketed and the average is going to come out

         12  somewhere at 68.  This is a really good way to view

         13  this policy.  It won't be purist, it won't be

         14  absolutist, but it will be an effective check and

         15  create the district of the future which we have had

         16  in the past that is really a great contribution to

         17  our city.

         18                 I really would -- everyone is in

         19  agreement about this within the artist community,

         20  that this is a good thing.  Let my voice speak for

         21  the many, many who aren't here.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA:  Thank you.  Due

         23  to the, as Council Member Gerson aid, we're going to

         24  be holding off the vote 'til tomorrow, due to the

         25  ongoing issues and the ongoing discussions that are
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          2  continuing with Melinda Katz chair of the Land Use

          3  Committee, myself, Land Use staff, including the

          4  speaker and City Planning and Council Member Gerson,

          5  I am recessing the meeting until 9, 9:30 tomorrow

          6  morning in which case the committee will take this

          7  up again. I am closing the public hearing on this

          8  item but we will vote on it tomorrow. The public

          9  portion is closed.

         10                 Now, Land Use No. 513 and Land Use

         11  No. 585 are going to be laid over to the next

         12  subcommittee meeting.

         13                 Thank you for coming, ladies and

         14  gentlemen. That closes this meeting of the

         15  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 12:08 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT IARKOWSKI, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 1st day of December 2003.
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         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the
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